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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (“STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Inno-
Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or in this report misleading.

*  For identification purposes only
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Corporate Information
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Five-year Financial Summary

T EHBEBRE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
BZ "z S "z EE
—Z-)0\% ZE—tF ZE-RF —Z-1% ZE-NF
~AA=TH ~NA=ZtHE ~NA=Zt+HE ~A=ZtH ~NA=Z+HE
LtEE IEFE EFE HEE IEFE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue W= 33,272 48,121 42,208 39,218 51,375
Cost of sales HEKA (35,837) (46,029) (41,163) (70,440) (76,151)
Gross profit/(loss) 5/ (£8) (2,565) 2,092 1,045 (31,222) (24,776)
Other revenue and other income* Hiplas R EIKA* 452,538 2,628 195 769,456 3,513
Marketing and promotion expenses MEEBEREERY (1,139) (987) (842) (1,795) (1,783)
Administrative expenses TR (30,776) (36,161) (34,837) (277,230) (346,204)
Other costs* i Eia* (15,000) (927,494) - - -
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSTAT (B1B) /R A 403,058 (959,922) (34,439) 459,209 (369,250)
Income tax PRER (863) 106 130 55,135 13,041
(Loss)/profit from continuing SEREEBZ
operations (&) /%7 402,195 (959,816) (34,309) 514,344 (356,209)
Profit/(loss) for the year from RIEREER 2
discontinued operations EEHEFN/ (BB) - - = 206,249 (21,428)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(58)afl 402,195 (959,816) (34,309) 720,593 (377,637)
(Loss)/profit attributable to:— AT &R
(B8)/&H: -
Owners of the Company AREHEBA 402,195 (959,816) (34,309) 716,253 (371,458)
Non-controlling interest EEurlid: 5 - - - 4,340 (6,179)
402,195 (959,816) (34,309) 720,593 (377,637)

Other revenue and other income included changes in fair value of financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss, gain upon conversion of
convertible bonds, fair value gain on convertible bonds.

Other costs included extinguishment of repayment of promissory notes and

borrowings, loss on issuance of convertible bonds, loss upon conversion of
convertible bonds, fair value loss on convertible bonds and impairment loss

on loan receivables.

* Hiplam R EMBABRERAFEFARGZERE
EZRFEED HRABRRESRZ W KT #R
B AP ERE -

¢ HthRABEEEAREREREE BT BRERE

ZEE - AR B ESE 2 EER

BEEBRERERZRERSE-

.
CARBES 2 AF

As at 30 June

RARA=TH
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\§ —E-tf —E-RF —Z-hF —E-mE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 27,460 33,434 31,097 34,995 330,821
Total liabilities BafE (201,692) (617,660) (165,427) (136,060) (1,345,193)
Shareholders' funds BREES (174,232) (584,226) (134,330) (101,065) (1,003,814)
Non-current assets FRBEE 246 15,473 1,012 1,800 210,483
Current assets MEEE 27,214 17,961 30,085 33,195 120,338
Current liabilities mEAE (201,692) (91,310) (155,321) (135,824) (596,144)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - (526,350) (10,106) (236) (749,049)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
H&: IE Jﬁ Z nIEI \ /-\ *Fl'

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of outdoor advertising on
buses and bus stations and television advertising operation
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and event

management and marketing services in Hong Kong.

The Group reported a revenue of approximately
HK$33,272,000 for the year ended 30 June 2018, representing
a decrease of approximately 30.65% compared with the
revenue of approximately HK$48,121,000 for the year
ended 30 June 2017. During the year ended 30 June 2018,
a significant part of the revenue was contributed from the
buses and bus stations advertising business whereas an
approximately 98.9% of the revenue was contributed from
event management and marketing services business.

The marketing and promotion expenses for the year ended
30 June 2018 amounted to approximately HK$1,139,000,
which were arising from the buses and bus stations
advertising business, representing an increase of approximately
HK$152,000 or 15.4% as compared with that of approximately
HK$987,000 in the last corresponding year.

The administrative expenses for the year ended 30 June 2018
decreased by approximately HK$879,000 to approximately
HK$30,384,000 (2017: approximately HK$31,263,000), which
was mainly due to the payment of legal and professional fees
for financial advisory services.

Finance cost decreased by approximately 91.99% from
approximately HK$4,898,000 for the year ended 30 June 2017
to approximately HK$392,000 for the year ended 30 June
2018. The finance costs were mainly consisted of interest on
borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
,_.q IE Jﬁ Z nHB \ /-\ *Fl'

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
(Cont’d)

Basic earning per share as at 30 June 2018 was HK$0.394
(2017: basic loss per share HK$2.01).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

Buses and bus stations advertising business in the PRC

The Group continues to focus on the business operations of
having outdoor advertising on buses and bus stations. The
major customers in such business segment include media
agency and customers of medical and communications industry.
The major suppliers include bus and bus stations owners and
advertising production companies for provision of outdoor
media resources. It persistently pursues the development in the
following possible ways:

Expands the advertising network;

Expands the customer base;

Increases the utilization of the Group’s media resources;

—  Enhances pricing strategy; and

—  Focuses on sales and marketing.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group’s buses and
bus stations advertising business in the PRC reported a 39%
decrease in revenue to HK$28,530,000 from HK$46,785,000 in
2017.

Television advertising business in the PRC

Due to challenging and competitive operating environment
in the PRC, the Group has scaled down the investment in
this sector in order to allocate more resources on other major
sectors and explore new business opportunities. There is no
revenue reporting for the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
,_.q IE Jﬁ Z nHE \ /-\ *Fl'

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
(Cont’d)

Event management and marketing services in Hong Kong

The Group would provide tailor-made and customized
services for clients according to their specific needs for event
promotion, event organization and event arrangement. For
the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group’s event management
and marketing services business in Hong Kong reported
revenue amounting to approximately HK$4,373,000 (2017:
approximately HK$1,336,000).

Hong Kong has received worldwide recognition as one of the
best destinations for meetings, incentives, conventions and
exhibitions and business travelers. As such, it is foreseeable that
there will be demand for event management and marketing

services and the prospect of this business segment is optimistic.
PROSPECTS

“Board”)
will continue to explore and evaluate new businesses and

The board of directors of the Company (the

investment opportunities which could be of good potential and/
or long-term benefit to the Group and the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Board will take a cautious and conservative approach in
the evaluation and timing of potential projects or investments,
including and constantly keep reviewing the Group's strategies
and operations with a view to improve its business performance
and Shareholders’ returns.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
,_.q IE Jﬁ Z nHB \ /-\ *Fl'

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2018, the net current liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$174,478,000 (2017: HK$73,349,000).
Out of the current assets as at 30 June 2018, approximately
HK$4,883,000 (2017: HK$10,806,000) were cash and cash
equivalents. The current ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2018
was 0.13 (2017: 0.20). As at 30 June 2018, the Group has
borrowings of HK$10,500,000 (2017: Nil) and other debts of
convertible bonds of approximately of HK$118,800,000 (2017:
promissory note of HK$43,640,000) denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The net debt (i.e. total short-term borrowings and
other debts less cash and cash equivalent) as at 30 June 2018
was HK$196,809,000 (2017: HK$80,504,000) and accordingly
net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net debt/net assets) as at 30 June
2018 was nil (2017: Nil).

The Group did not have any stand-by banking facilities as at 30
June 2018 and 2017.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$4,883,000 (2017: HK$10,806,000) which
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
("RMB"). The Group expected to fund the future cash flow
needs through internally generated cash flows from operations,
borrowings and equity financing.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no
material capital expenditure commitments as at 30 June 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERBzwmI R DM

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2018, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$10,529,490.99 and the number of its issued ordinary
shares was 1,052,949,099 of HK$0.01 each.

Convertible Bonds

During the year, the Company issued the following convertible
bonds being part of the financial restructuring exercise of the
Group.

On 7 November 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds
with principal amount of HK$60.50 million (the “CB1") due
in November 2018 with conversion price of HK$0.10 per
conversion share to Profit Eagle. The CB1 does not bear any
interest. The maturity date is the date falling on the 24 months
of the date of issue of the CB1. On 13 June 2018, the CB1
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$500,000 have been
converted into 5,000,000 shares and the principal amount of
HK$60.00 million (CB1) remains outstanding.

On 7 November 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds
with principal amount of HK$50 million (the “CB2") due in
May 2018 with conversion price of HK$0.10 per conversion
share to Ms. Kuo Yi-Hui. The CB2 has an interest rate of 3%
per annum. The maturity date is the date falling on the 18
months of the date of issue of the CB2. As at 30 June 2018,
the CB2 amounting to HK$50 million have been fully converted
into 500,000,000 shares.

On 7 November 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds
with aggregate principal amount of HK$25 million (the “CB3")
due in November 2018 with conversion price of HK$0.10 per
conversion share to not less than 6 placees. The CB3 has an
interest rate of 3% interest per annum. The maturity date is the
date falling on the 24 months of the date of issue of the CB3.
As at 30 June 2018, the CB3 with a total principal amount
of HK$25 million have been fully converted into 250,000,000
shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
,_.q IE Jﬁ Z nHB \ /-\ *Fl'

CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)
Convertible Bonds (Cont’d)

For details of the Capital Reorganisation and the financial
restructuring exercise of the Group, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 12 August 2016, 19
September 2016, 24 October 2016, 3 November 2016 and 7
November 2016 respectively and the circular of the Company
dated 23 September 2016.

The Group is constantly looking for any other business
opportunities for new possible potential investment to
improve the standard performance of the Group and improve
Shareholders’ return.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK

The reporting currencies of the Group is Hong Kong dollars

("HK$").

Such
exposures arise from the business operations in the PRC

The Group has transactional currency exposures.

denominated in RMB.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies
and conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. As at 30 June 2018, the Group had
a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities were principally
denominated in the respective Group entities functional
currency which are mainly in HK$ or RMB.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
,_.q IE Jﬁ Z nHE \ /-\ *Fl'

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK (Cont’d)

As at 30 June 2018, the Group does not have foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when
appropriate.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no investment in any
financial derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or
currency swaps, hedgings or other financial arrangements for
hedging purposes to reduce any currency risk nor made any

over-the-counter contingent forward transactions.
EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed a total of 76
and the total
remuneration (including Directors’ remuneration) for the
year ended 30 June 2018 was approximately HK$8,089,000
(2017: HK$9,643,000). The Group remunerates its employees
based on their individual performance, working experience,
qualification and the prevailing market price. Other benefits
provided by the Group to the employee include mandatory

employees (including Directors) (2017: 67),

provident fund, insurance and medical coverage, training

programs and share option scheme.
DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil) and no
interim dividend was paid during the year (2016: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 12 September 2018 the Exchange release the news release
that a very serious view of the conduct of Ang Wing Fung,
a former Executive Director was taken, in relation to certain
payments by the Company to himself or third parties. The
Exchange considers that Mr. Ang may not be considered
suitable to be a director of a listed company if he should make
such an application in the future. Meanwhile, the GEM Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange censured the Company for
failing to publicize three sets of financial results and reports;
and censured the following executive directors (EDs) and
independent non-executive directors (INEDs) of the Company,
including Mr. Ang, former ED; Mr. Chen Chuan, former ED; Mr.
Shih Yau Ting Jackson, former ED.

Pursuant to the directions of the GEM Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange given in the News Release, the Company
has appointed Gram Capital Limited, being a licensed
corporation to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as the independent
compliance adviser (the”Compliance Adviser”) on an ongoing
basis for consultation on GEM Listing Rules compliance for a
period of two years with effect from 18 September 2018. Gram
Capital will be accountable to the Company’s audit committee
during the term of appointment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 30 June 2018.

LITIGATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group has been involved in a number of legal proceedings.
Details of the litigations are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Profile

EECRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Pu Haiyong

Mr. Pu Haiyong (“Mr. Pu”) has been appointed as an executive
Director and chairman of the Board with effect from 20 June
2018. Mr. Pu, aged 44, obtained a master degree of business
administration from Jilin University* (Z# A 2) . Mr. Pu
founded and is currently the chairman of Zhongrui Shengshi
Wealth (Beijing) Investment Management Limited* (A I 2%t
ME (ER)REERABR AR, a financial company provides
financial services including financial leasing, asset management
and investment financing, the equity of which is registered on
Shenzhen Qianhai Equity Exchange Centre (Shenzhen) Limited*
CRYIpERER S+ .0 ORYNDBRAF) . He is also the
chairman of Haifax (Beijing) Financial Information Service
Company Limited* 8 & /T (LR & BRELERBBER LA, a
company with principal business of internet lending, in which
Mr. Pu is responsible for strategic planning and orientation
and management affairs. Mr. Pu has more than 20 years of
experience in insurance, investment and financial services
aspects and has extensive experience in market development,
financial management, risk control and business operation.

Mr. Wang Yu

Mr. Wang Yu (“Mr. Wang"”), has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Board and Chief Executive Officer,
the authorized representative, and the Process Agent of the
Company with effect from 16 August 2018. Mr. Wang, aged
36, graduated from the Business School of Jilin University with
a double major in Financial Management and Literature and
received a bachelor’s degree in Management and Literature.
From July 2004 to February 2015, he worked in the Finance
Department of China Hualiang Logistics Group Beiliang
Company Limited as Section Chief. Since February 2015,
until end of June 2018 he has served as General Manager of
Richful Deyong International Business (China) Limited which
has integrated business and business operations service
provider, headquartered in Hong Kong. He was responsible
for developing business and marketing strategies, overseeing
overall sales and marketing, and managing relationships with
service providers and business partners.
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Directors’ Profile

EECRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)
Mr. Lau King Hang

Mr. Lau King Hang (“Mr. Lau”), aged 47, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company in March 2016. He is a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Board.

Mr. Lau graduated from National Taiwan University with
a Bachelor’s degree in Chemistry and received a Master's
degree in Business Administration and a Master's degree in
Financial Services from The Open University of Hong Kong.
He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
is a member of The Hong Kong Management Association
and obtained the title of Professional Manager. Mr. Lau has
over 18 years of extensive management experience in sales
and marketing in high technology and chemical industry;
packaging and printing services, food and beverage operations;
and investments experience. Mr. Lau has served as executive
director of Mascotte Holdings Limited (now known as HengTen
Networks Group Limited) (Stock Code: 136) from June 2011 to
March 2014 and Mission Capital Holdings Limited (now known
as CMBC Capital Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 1141) from
August 2014 to July 2015.

Dr. Chan Yiu Wing

Dr. Chan Yiu Wing (“Dr. Chan”), aged 66, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company in March 2016 and is a
member of the nomination committee of the Board.

Dr. Chan holds a doctor of business administration in The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and a PhD in Buddhism
in The University of Hong Kong in 2013. Dr. Chan has been
working in the Hong Kong Police Force for 25 years till the
position of a Senior Superintendent and then continue to
work as a Chief Staff Officer, AMS for a further 10 years. He is
currently the advisor of the Hong Kong Life-Saving Society. Dr.
Chan has also received the Chief Executive’s Commendation
for Government Public Service in 2004 and six Commanding
Officer's Commendations when he was working in under the
Hong Kong Police Force. Apart from his directorship with the
Company, Dr. Chan does not hold any directorship in any other
listed company in the last three years.
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Directors’ Profile

EECRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leung Chung Nam

Mr. Leung Chung Nam (“Mr. Leung”), has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director, chairman of the audit
committee and a member of each of remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Board with effect from 3
August 2018. Mr. Leung, aged 30, graduated from the City
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Accountancy in 2010 and has over 8 years of
experience in accounting and finance industry in Hong Kong.
He is a CFA charter holder, member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of
both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Leung
has served as an executive director in Trillion Grand Corporate
Company Limited (stock code: 8103) from March 2016 to July
2018. Mr. Leung was a director of (i) All Day Breakfast Limited,;
and (ii) Blue Season Limited, both are private companies limited
by shares incorporated in Hong Kong. All Day Breakfast Limited
was dissolved by deregistration on 20 December 2013 under
section 291AA of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) as in force before 3 March 2014. Blue
Season Limited was dissolved by deregistration on 21 July 2017
under section 751 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong). Both companies were principally
engaged in the catering business. To the best of the knowledge
and belief of Mr. Leung, both companies had ceased business
and become defunct and each of them was solvent at the time
of it being dissolved by deregistration.
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Directors’ Profile

EECRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Tse Yuen Ming

Mr. Tse Yuen Ming (“Mr. Tse"),
an independent non-executive Director of the Company in

aged 51, was appointed as

November 2014 and is a member of the audit committee and
nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Tse is a partner of Messrs. Tung, Ng, Tse & Heung. He holds
a bachelor of laws degree with honour from the University of
Hong Kong and admitted to The Supreme Court of Hong Kong
as a solicitor in 1993. Mr. Tse is appointed as Vice President of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Small & Medium Business
and ceased to be the Chairman of Professional Services
Committee of the Hong Kong Chamber of Small & Medium
Business in January 2017. Mr. Tse is currently the Executive
Vice President of Hong Kong Guangxi Chamber of Commerce
Limited, a member of the Lions Club of H.K. (Mainland), the
Legal Adviser of Life Underwriters & Sales Executive Board (HK)
Limited, Hong Kong Exhibitors Association, ECO-Foundation
Organisation and Children’s Thalassaemia Foundation. Mr.
Tse has served as an independent non-executive director of
Runway Global Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1520)
which is listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange,
from November 2016 to June 2017. Mr. Tse is currently an
independent non-executive director of Daido Group Limited
(stock code: 544) which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and Celebrate International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8212) which is listed on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Profile

EECRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Ms. Liu Jianyi

Ms. Liu Jianyi (“Ms. Liu"),
independent non-executive Director of the Company in

aged 32, was appointed as an

March 2016. She is a member of the audit committee and
the chairman of the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board.

Ms. Liu holds a master of business administration in Samuel
Curtis Johnson Graduate School of Management in Cornell
University in 2014 and a bachelor of system engineering in The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2010. Ms. Liu is currently
working as vice president of a corporate financial services
institution and has extensive management experience in
corporate finance and private equity funds. Ms. Liu is currently
an independent non-executive director of Imagi International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 585) which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (“Code Provision(s)”) set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of its business and to review its corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure they comply with the statutory
requirements and the CG Code and align with the latest
developments.

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company has
complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG Code,
except for the following deviations.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive ("CEQ") should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
has not appointed chairman since 23 January 2015, and the
roles and functions of the chairman have been performed by all
the executive directors collectively. The Company also has not
appointed CEO since 9 April 2015, and the roles and functions
of CEO have been performed by all the executive directors
collectively. The Board keeps reviewing the current structure of
the Board from time to time and has identified candidates with
suitable knowledge, skill and experience. The Company has
made appointment to fill the posts of the chairman and CEO of
Mr. Pu Haiyong as Chairman and Mr. Wang Yu as CEO on 20
June 2018 and 16 August 2018 respectively. The Company will
make further announcement as and when required pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (Cont’d)

Under Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. In addition, Under Code Provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting and he should also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
(“Securities Code”) of the GEM Listing Rules. During the year
ended 30 June 2018, the Directors have confirmed, following
specific inquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the required standard and code of conduct set out in the
Securities Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 30 June 2018, the Board comprised seven Directors
including four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent
non-executive Director possess appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise,
which complies with the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board members during the year ended 30 June 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Pu Haiyong (appointed on 20 June 2018)
Mr. Wang Yu (appointed on 16 August 2018)
Mr. Lau King Hang
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing
Mr. Mazher Hussain
(resigned on 20 June 2018)
Mr. Ha Chuen Yeung (resigned on 16 August 2018)

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

TRERER (&)

RBOFRERTAZTARXFEA 67K B
FRTEZREMIFNTESTRHFERRAE
REBRROERBRIENTE MM REEE
ERTAZTARXFEN 2R EFQTFE
HERFRBFEASG BRTEEFERR FM-
RAREMEMZEGZEE (WAE) HER

AARERBEBETELR ZRMIETRERE
[E TR GEM LT 43 BI85.4825.6714FTH B
BRERTZ2RTTR ([EHTA]) -REZE
—E-NEXNAZTHLEE RAEARXRIEH
RFEEHRE EEHR RECETESFTAM
BB TEEERESFFAC

=

R-B-NFXRA=+H EFehtUES
MR BROVATEREAR =BT
EX - ELUBYUFATEFTABEAZE
XS ERMMBERELNE KT EGEM
EWRRABE -

REBEE_Z-N\FAA=THLFEREER
FHREYMIECEETERER:

BITES:

BEBEE (RZE-—NFARAZTRHEZT)

FFEE(RZZE-—NFEFNATBEZMT)

e K&

PRIZEE B 4

Mazher Hussain%t 4
(RZZB-—NFENAZTHEE)

ERGEE (R-_ZE—N\FENA+/NBET)

Annual Report 17/18 £%§ 17/18



Corporate Governance Report
¥ EREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Ting Kon (appointed on 15 February 2018,
Resigned on 3 August 2018)

Mr. Leung Chung Nam (appointed on 3 August 2018)

Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas (resigned on 14 February 2018)

Mr. Tse Yuen Ming

Ms. Liu Jianyi

Biographical details of each Director is set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Profile” on pages 14 to 18 of this annual
report.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among members of
the Board.

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and the Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Company'’s affairs and overseeing
the achievement of strategic plans to enhance shareholders’
value.

Generally, the Board is responsible for all major aspects of the
affairs of the Company, including:

e  formulation of overall strategies and review of its financial
performance and results, risk management and the

internal control systems;

e policies relating to key business and financial objectives of
the Company;

. material transactions, including acquisition, investment,
disposal of assets or capital expenditure;

e appointment, removal or re-appointment of Board
members and auditors;

Annual Report 17/18 ¥ 17/18

B8 (#A)
BYFHTES:

BEEBRAELE(R-_ZE-NF_A+HHEZHE
ER-_F—N\F\A=ZBEE)

RimiE (RS- N\FNANA=ZBEEE)

FEEELE (R N\F-_A+TOBBEI)

AEALE

Lot

BESZREFBHERNAFRFI4E18HZ
(BERZBE] —f-

ExeX B ZRBER
T 3k EL ftb 85K 34 AR A B8

Sl

®(BREMB %% R
&) e

sl

ARARBEXFHEZTSAEEE EF K
BEEEREHARRZEE BEEHAAEER
BBIEEREBARRREH A K EE RIS AT
B2 BT AMRARRMEE  EMmaslBAAR B
[RR T

—RME EECREARREBZIMBELIE
#s B

o HIFTEERBEERSEMBRRALESE

Ja e 3R A e A EB BE HE K

s BARARREZEXHAMBERZIHEK:

s EARXRG BREUE RE HEBEEXE

AFX

s ZE BRIENZEEFTSNEREH
i

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED E AR AR AR

21



22

Corporate Governance Report

/\\//‘-[‘-\\Ai
= EVD#&%’

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

communication with key stakeholders, including
shareholders and regulatory bodies; and

. recommendation to shareholders on final dividend and the
declaration of any interim dividends.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records so as to enable the Directors to monitor and disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group.
The Board updates shareholders of the Company on the
operations and financial position of the Group through
quarterly, interim and annual results announcements as well as
the publication of reports and announcements of other matters
as prescribed by the relevant laws, rules and regulations.

Decisions regarding the daily operation and administration of
the Company are delegated to the management.

Directors are also provided with access to independent
professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out their
obligations as Directors, at the expense of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors
assume the responsibilities to the Shareholders for the well-
being and success of the Company. They are aware of their
duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

The independent non-executive Directors, advise the Company
on strategic and critical matters. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive Director brings his own senior level
of experience and expertise to the constructive functioning of
the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

The Board has normally scheduled four regular meetings a year
each at quarterly interval and meets as and when required as
it would be more transparent and efficient to let the Board
members (including the executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) to express their views in the meeting.
During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Board held ten
full board meetings including four regular meetings and the
attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

B8 (£)

Exe-REHMEFETOAERGHE N
FE-R NEEARERAHEH BARES
EXE (BENTESRBYIFNTES) IR
SELTEERRBRMRERSZER -RE
E-T-N\FRA=ZTHALFE EFELR
TTtRzEe% (BEENREHER) BES

HEEFE R RBMT

Number of
meetings held
Number of during
attendance term of office
EHRET
Name of Directors EEpR R E BBNRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Pu Haiyong BEBRAE
(appointed on 20 June 2018) (RZZE—NF
ANAZTREZRT) 2 2
Mr. Wang Yu ITFEE
(appointed on 16 August 2018) (RZZE—NF
NA+BEET) 2 2
Mr. Ha Chuen Yeung ERHRE
(resigned on 16 August 2018) (RZZ—NF
NAT+REBE) 1 11
Mr. Lau King Hang 2151 5%k 4 12 12
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing PR 12 R 18 + 12 12
Mr. Mazher Hussain Mazher Hussaint 4
(resigned on 20 June 2018) (R=—Z=—NF
NAZ+BEHME) 10 10
Independent non-executive Directors B IFHTESE
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas T EL A
(resigned on 15 February 2018) (RZZ—NF
—ABt+EABT) 4 4
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming AR A 12 12
Ms. Liu Jianyi 2S5 Bt 12 12
Mr. Wong Ting Kon BEHLE
(appointed on 15 February 2018) (RZZE—NF
(resigned on 3 August 2018) “AtHEAERT)
(RZZE—N\FENR=ZBHEMH) 6 6
Mr. Leung Chung Nam R{hmE et
(appointed on 3 August 2018) (RZZE—NF
NA=ZBEZM) 2 2
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company considers that each of its independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmations, considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Practices”, the Company has not appointed chairman since 23
January 2015 and has not appointed CEO since 9 April 2015.
The roles and functions of the chairman and CEO have been
performed by all the executive Directors collectively during the
year.

The Board keeps reviewing the current structure of the Board
from time to time and has identified candidates with suitable
knowledge, skill and experience be identified. The Company
has made appointment to fill the posts of the chairman and
CEO on 20 June 2018 and 16 August 2018 respectively. Mr. Pu
Haiyong has been appointed as chairman and Mr. Wang Yu has
been appointed as CEO.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of two
years and shall continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than three month notice in
writing but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM")
pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). In
the case of namely Mr. Lau King Hang and Dr. Chan Yiu Wing,
their appointment terms commenced on 24 March 2016.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed
for a specific term of three years and subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the Bye-
laws. In the case of Mr. Leung Chung Nam, his appointment
term commenced on 3 August 2018 and Ms. Liu Jianyi, her
appointment term commenced on 24 March 2016; and in the
case of Mr. Tse Yuen Ming, his appointment term commenced
on 13 November 2014.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, at each AGM one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their numbers is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. Such retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout
the meeting at which he retires. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following AGM and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
(Cont’d)

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
should keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as
Directors and of the business and activities of the Group.
Each newly appointed Director would receive a comprehensive
induction package covering business operations, policy and
procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory
and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that
he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the
GEM Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and update all
Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

(Cont’d)

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional

Development (Cont’d)

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Directors participated
in continuous professional developments in relation to
regulatory update, the duties and responsibility of the Directors

and the business of the Group in the following manners:

ZE-EERER (&)

ESC A\BREBHEEXRRE (&)

RBE_Z-/\FRA=TRLFE EFRX
TIAASEBREREETN EFRBELBE
RAGBEEBZBEERER:

Attended
course/seminars
or briefing/
read materials
HERE HHER
Directors BEE S BEME
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Pu Haiyong SHBEBRAE
(appointed on 20 June 2018) (RZE—NFANAZTHEZT) v
Mr. Wang Yu FFEE
(appointed on 16 August 2018) (RZE—NFNARTAEZE) v
Mr. Ha Chuen Yeung BB RE
(resigned on 16 August 2018) (RZZF—NFENA+TSHEE) v
Mr. Lau King Hang 2fEL A v
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing PRIZEEIE T v
Mr. Mazher Hussain Mazher Hussain’t 4
(resigned on 20 June 2018) (R=ZE—NFXNA=ZT+BET) v
Independent non-executive Directors BYKEHITES
Mr. Leung Chung Nam RMELEE
(appointed on 3 August 2018) (RZE-—NFNA=ZBEZE) v
Mr. Wong Ting Kon BEBKE
(appointed on 15 February 2018) (RZE-—NFZRAT+HEAEZLT)
(resigned on 3 August 2018) (RZZE-—NFNA=BEE) v
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas TEERE
(resigned on 15 February 2018) (RZE—NFZA+HBHMT) v
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming FREA LA 7
Ms. Liu Jianyi ZIffta L+ v
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company's
affairs. Their respective terms of reference are available in the

Company'’s website.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board ("AC") was set up on 5 July
2002 with written terms of reference in compliance with the

GEM Listing Rules.

The AC comprises all independent non-executive Directors and
is chaired by Mr. Leung Chung Nam who is an accountant with
related financial management expertise. During the year, the
members of the AC are as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Chung Nam (Chairman)

Mr. Tse Yuen Ming

Ms. Liu Jianyi

The AC performs, amongst others, the following functions:

e ensure that co-operation is given by the Company’s
management to the external auditors where applicable;

e review the Group's quarterly, half-yearly and annual results
announcements and the financial statements prior to their

recommendations to the Board for approval,

e review the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

° review of transactions with connected persons (if any).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

During the year ended 30 June 2018, four meetings were held
by the AC to review the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Company, to discuss the
accounting policies and practices which may affect the Group
with the management and the Company’s auditor, to make
recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors for
the approval of the shareholders in the annual general meeting
and to review the fees charged by the external auditors. The
unaudited quarterly results and interim results of the Group in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 have been reviewed by
the AC. The audited annual results of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2018 have been reviewed by the AC, which was
of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the Stock Exchange
and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have
been made.

Details of the attendance of the members of the AC at AC

BREESG (&)
REE-_ZE—NFNA=Z1tHILFE BE%ZZ

BeARNAEE WRNEKARARZANEFEE
LEREBGEZAERE BEEERARTF
ZREBMARAUETEAEB ZEFHER
B RRRBFAE L2Z BB IMNEZBED
DAL BCR L/ M BB SN A SR W B 2 B A
ERZEBRNCRHAARBREBE_T—\FX
ﬂ—+E¢¢FZ$W%$§F¥ﬁ PELEEE S

BERZEGERHAREAEZE _T—\F
/\H STHRLEFEZKRERFEERE UYRA
FHXERUETABEAGHER B IOE
BRE BCFhRSBE-

REBEFERN BEREZEEKEHRERZE

meetings during the year under review are as follows: BERIABOT:
Number of
meetings held
Number of during
attendance term of office
FHA
Name of Director EEpgA HERE HITEBRAH
Mr. Leung Chung Nam RihE L4
(appointed on 3 August 2018) (RZE—N\F
NA=ZBEZM) 1 1
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas PHEEE
(resigned on 15 February 2018) (RZE—N\F
—ABt+EABT) 2 4
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming FREAL A 4 4
Ms. Liu Jianyi Zlfta 4 4
Mr. Wong Ting Kon BEHLE
(appointed on 15 February 2018) (RZZE—-NF
(resigned on 3 August 2018) ZRA+EREERE)
(RZE-NFENA=ZHEE) 1 4
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Board (the “NC") was set up
on 18 January 2012 with written terms of reference to review
the structure, size and composition (including but not limited to
the gender, skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The NC
comprises a majority of independent non-executive Directors
and is chaired by an independent non-executive Director, Ms.
Liu Jianyi. During the year, the members of the NC are as
follows:

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Liu Jianyi (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Chung Nam (appointed on 3 August 2018)
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lau King Hang
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing

The roles and principal functions of the NC include to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships, make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors, and succession planning for Directors.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the NC will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, including
the independence status in the case of an independent non-
executive Director, the board diversity policy, the Company’s
needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d) REZES (E&)

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the NC held two REEE-_Z—N\FAAZTHILEFERN RAE
meetings and they have reviewed the structure, size and ZEE@EBETMALH EEBRTESG 2R
composition of the Board, the retirement and re-election of AR RMAK EBERBRFBEFARY L2 RE
the Directors at the AGM and considered the changes of REREBILRZEEFHETEZ -RNHE2_ZT—N
Directors. During the year ended 30 June 2018, all of the newly F/XA=Z+HILFE FEFNTESTHARZ L
appointed Directors were appointed by going through the Hi&FEREBFZR(T-

selection process stated as above.

Details of the attendance of the members of the NC at the NC REEFERN EEZEZES@XKEHFEREEE

meetings during the year under review are as follows: BERIABOT:
Number of
meetings held
Number of during term
attendance of office
FHA
Name of Director EEpR HERE HITEBRAH
Ms. Liu Jianyi 2B E+
Mr. Lau King Hang EIESRED S
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing PR 12 R 18 +
Mr. Leung Chung Nam RihE L4
(appointed on 3 August 2018) (RZZE—N\F
NA=BEZM) 0 0
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas FEERE
(resigned on 15 February 2018) (RZZE—N\F
—Bt+EABT) 1 2
Mr. Wong Ting Kon EEHEE
(appointed on 15 February 2018) (RZZE—N\F
(resigned on 3 August 2018) “AtHEAERT)
(RZZE-—NFN\HA=HFT) 1
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming HRAFE A 2
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The NC will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its

continued effectiveness. During the year, the NC has reviewed
the Policy.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “"RC") reviews
and approves the remunerations of Directors. To minimise any
conflict of interest, any member who is interested in any given
proposed motion is required to abstain from voting on such
motion. The RC was set up in July 2008 with written terms of
references to oversee the remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management. The RC is formed by a
majority of independent non-executive Directors and chaired by
an independent non-executive Director, Ms. Liu Jianyi. During
the year, the members of the RC are as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Liu Jianyi (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Chung Nam

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lau King Hang

The roles of the RC are to recommend to the Board the policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and to determine, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management with reference to the Board’'s
corporate goals and objectives, and to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
They are provided with sufficient resources by the Company
to discharge its duties. No individual Director is involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, two meetings was held
by the RC to discuss and review the remuneration policies of
the Company, to review and made recommendations with
respect to the remuneration of Board members for approval by
the Board and to made recommendations with respect to the
remuneration of the newly appointed Director during the year
for approval by the Board. The RC has adopted the operation
model where it performs an advisory role to the Board, with the
Board retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

Details of the attendance of the members of the RC at the RC
meetings are as follows during the year under review:

yHMEES (&)

KEEEER FHEEERBLEFMHER
FEEZEBNT

Number of
meetings held

Number of during term
attendance of office
FHRA
Name of Director ESHE HERE ZITERRH
Ms. Liu Jianyi 2EE L+ 2 2
Mr. Leung Chung Nam RhE St
(appointed on 3 August 2018) (RZZE—NF
NAZREZT) 0 0
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas T ES L
(resigned on 15 February 2018) (RZZE—N\F
ZR+EA®MT) 1
Mr. Lau King Hang EIEIRER =S 2
Mr. Wong Ting Kon HEHLE
(appointed on 15 February 2018) (R N\%F
(resigned on 3 August 2018) “ATHAEZEME)
(R=ZZE-NFN\A=HEE) 1 2
Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior Management EERSREBEBZ2HFMWEE

The remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management, comprising a basic salary and a
performance related bonus for their contributions, were
determined, with delegated responsibility according to the
Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i). Details of Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report.

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme in
2012. The purpose of the said share option scheme is to
enable the Board, at its discretion, to grant options to selected
eligible participants to motivate them and to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group. Details
of the share option schemes are set out under the section
headed “Share Option Schemes” in this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

All members of the Board are responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions. The terms of reference of
corporate governance functions was adopted by the Board and
is in compliance with the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Board has reviewed
the policy of the corporate governance and the corporate
governance report of the Company.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the fees paid to the
auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditor of the Group were as follows:

R E BRI
EXExEREBRERTEREARABE -EF
ERMECEEABECBERE WEBTEE
ERTFATFRAEXED3 MG - REBEE_ZT—N
FRAZTHLFE EZECENARAZ
CEERBRRRERERRS -
BB BN &
BE_Z-\FRA=ZTRHLFE #EL&EE

&@%khZ%ﬁ&#%%%%ﬁiﬁz&@
FEBRMT:

2018 2017

—EBE-N\F —+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Audit services EiT RS 880 840

Non-audit services IEEE R 120 55

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREZX

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements ESHUBBRRZER

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board having
made appropriate enquiries and examined major areas
which could give rise to significant financial exposures, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that
the Group keeps accounting records which disclose in the
annual, half-yearly and quarterly reports in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; and other inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules, and reports to the
regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed

pursuant to statutory requirements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Cont’d)

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The statement of external auditor of the Company, Elite
Partners CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this annual report.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year under review, an annual general meeting was
held on 3 November 2017 and special general meetings were
held on 8 August 2016, 17 October 2016, 25 May 2017 and
8 June 2017 respectively. Details of the Directors’ attendance
of each of the annual general meeting and special general

meeting is set out below:

EAEREX (&)
BEMUMBRR &R

RRARSNEZBENFATTEEETMEBMEAR
REABAEHARB 2 MBHRR CBRETZ
BRHNAFR B ZBENRE] — &

BRERE

REBEEFER ARaIR_Z—tF+—A=
HRIBREBRBFAGEDFR_E—<FEN\A
NB ZE2—RE+ A+t =ZZE—+tFHA
“+HRHEEZZE—EFANANBETRERER
AE - BEEHESRRBAFRS RBREFRIAKR
GZHBEINAT

Special Special Special Special Annual
general general general general general
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
held on held on held on held on held on

8 August 17 October 25 May 8 June 3 November
2016 2016 2017 2017 2017
RZB-RE R-ZB-RF RIZ-tF RIB-tF RIB-tF
NANB +AttH EZA=+EHH ~ANB +-H=H
g22 #272 Bfi2 Bfiz #72
Name of Director ESpg BREHNAE RRBHIAE RRBHAE RREBIXE RREFAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Pu Haiyong BEBLE
(appointed on 20 June 2018) (RZZE-N\&F
NAZTHHEEZRA) NATER  NATER N/A TER N/A TE A N/A TER
Mr. Wang Yu IFE4E
(appointed on 16 August 2018) (R=E—N\EF
NA+ABEZ) NATER NATER  NATER  NATEE  NATER
Mr. Ha Chuen Yeung ERBEE
(resigned on 16 August 2018) (R=E—N\EF
NA+T7RBEE) / v v/ v v
Mr. Lau King Hang ASELLE / / / v v
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing BRIBEET v v v v %
Mr. Mazher Hussain Mazher Hussaint &
(resigned on 20 June 2018) (RZFE-N\F
NAZTREE) NATER  NARER v v NATER
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Wong Ting Kon BEERELE
(appointed on 15 February 2018) (R-B-N\%F
(resigned on 3 August 2018) ZA+RBEZA)
(RZT-N\F
NR=ZB#fF) NATER  NATER N/A TER N/A TiE A N/A TER
Mr. Leung Chung Nam REELE
(appointed on 3 August 2018) (R=E—N\EF
NA=ZBEZ) NATER  NATER N/A TER N/A TiE A N/A TER
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas FEREE v v v/ v/ /
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming HEALE v v v v %
Ms. Liu Jianyi el / / / v v
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is committed to implement an effective and sound
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard the
interest of Shareholders and the Group's assets.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems to ensure adequate
control in place to safeguard the Group’s assets and

stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to
address and handle all significant risks associate with the
business of the Group. The Board would perform annual review
on any significant change of the business environment and
establish procedures to response the risks result from significant
change of business environment.

The management would identify the risks associate with
the business of the Group by considering both internal and
external factors and events which include political, economic,
technology, environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has
been assessed and prioritised based on their relevant impact
and occurrence opportunity. The relevant risk management
strategy would be applied to each type of risks according to the
assessment results. The type(s) of risk management strategy are
listed as follow:

—  Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of

the risks;

—  Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as
to avoid the risk;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont’d)

Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the
risk or allocate to different location or product or market;

—  Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third
party

The internal control system is designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control systems are design
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group has engaged,
Elite Partners Risk Advisory Services Limited (“Elite Partners”),
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit
function to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. Elite
Partners would perform procedures for assess the effectiveness
and adequacy of the internal control system of the Group
quarterly. There is no significant deficiency and weakness on
the internal control system has been identified by Elite Partners
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 30 June
2018, the risk management and internal control systems
and procedures of the Group, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions were reasonably effective and

adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures are
followed. On 3 August 2018, Mr. Chan Cheung was appointed
as the Company Secretary and Ms. Lai Wai Ha, assistant
director of Akron Advisory Limited, external service provider,
has resigned as the Company Secretary on 3 August 2018.
Ms. Lai Wai Ha has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge
during the year ended 30 June 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Special General Meeting
and Put Forward Proposals at a General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Cont’d)

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Special General Meeting
and Put Forward Proposals at a General Meeting (Cont’d)

Pursuant to bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws, no person other than
a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a written notice signed
by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting for which
such notice is given of his intention to propose such person
for election and also a written notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given,
shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date
of such general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or the special general meeting include a written notice
of those proposals being submitted by shareholders, addressed
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office at
Suite B, 6/F., One Capital Place, 18 Luard Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at
the Company's head office at Suite B, 6/F., One Capital Place,
18 Luard Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or send email to
info@it-holdings.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
AGM or the special general meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses a number of formal communications
channels to account to shareholders and investors for the
performance of the Company. These include (i) the publication
of quarterly, interim and annual reports; (ii) the annual
general meeting or special general meeting providing a
forum for shareholders of the Company to raise comments
and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) key information
of the Group available on the website of the Company; (iv)
the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters; and (v)
corporate information and the Bye-laws of the Company are
made available on the Company’s website.

A Shareholder’'s Communication Policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing the shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors
with high standards of disclosure and financial transparency.
The Board is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely
manner and on a regular basis information of the Group to
shareholders through the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports and/or dispatching circular, notices, and other
announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Unit No. 1015, Level 10, Tower 1,
Grand Century Place, Mongkok, Kowloon.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR HEREBRS

OBJECTIVE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Inno-Tech Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to publish the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2018 (“Year 2018") with an aim to
demonstrate the effectiveness of the efforts of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in promoting the sustainable
development to its internal and external stakeholders.

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 20 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which mainly contains
the measures and activities regarding the environmental and
social aspects of the Group for Year 2018. For the information
regarding the corporate governance of the Group, please refers
to 2018 Annual Report.

The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business and supporting environmental
protection in communities where its operations are located.
The Group has prudently managed its business and provided
high-quality products and services to customers through
reasonable decision-making procedures. The Group and its
stakeholders (including shareholders, customers, employees,
suppliers, debtors, regulatory institutions and the public) have
maintained close relationships and the Group strives to listen to
different opinions and balance the benefits of its stakeholders
through constructive communications in deciding its long-
term development goals. The Board is responsible for assessing
and identifying risks associated with environmental, social
and governance matters of the Group and ensuring that the
relevant risk management and internal control systems are
operated properly and effectively.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

=/ =
N H

ERERARAR(IA2AzEEE ([&E
ER)MAEHAEEEE_T—N\FXA
ZSTEEFEZZE-NAFE]D N GRE
ERERRE)  BEEMAINEHEERE W
BARBREMBRR (REIAEE])HES
AEEERAOKRK -

AR ERBEEHREIHABERAFN (GEM
Ex EHRAD W20 GRIE-H& RhER
BEHES) R TBEEBAEE _T—N\F
EERRRELREEHRENEELEE - MERE
AEENEEERER F2HAEEN_-F
—N\FER-

AEBBRNEFEEBOAIRHERRANRAR
BREREEMEMHMEBRHESE -A&H
FEEREER URBSENAREF REP
REBEMNERMRE ANEEENGHEEE
BERR BF -EE HERN ERA EEH
BELARRBERHRE ERAERMENER
BRMNEHEBAENTRERY FEREN
KMEETRENBERTA -EFBAETER
REAKRENIRE g RERRER - WHERNA
AEREELAEERGEE R AREE-

Annual Report 17/18 £%§ 17/18



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERBRS

GENERAL

Shijiazhuang Enjian Bus Advertising Co. LTD* ( A X #& ™ &
2 AR ESEABMR A A) (“Shiiazhuang Enjian”) is a major
subsidiary of the Company, which is principally engaged in
designing, making and publication of advertisements on single-
decker buses, double-decker buses and bus stations in the PRC,
and has higher relevance to every segment on environmental,
social and governance matters. Hence, this report had focused
on the disclosure of the polices and performance regarding the
three environmental aspects and eight social aspects of the said
projects in Year 2018.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

To fulfill its commitment to sustainable development and
comply with the relevant laws and regulations related to
environmental protection, the Group has been dedicated
to reducing the impact of its operating activities on the
environment.

A1: EMISSIONS

The Group is compliance with the Environmental
Protection Law of People’s Public of China, Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Solid Waste Pollution and Energy Saving
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
relevant laws and regulations for the implementation
of the guidelines, policies, laws and regulations on
environmental protection of the State, so as to fully
improve the independent management standards on
environment.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Cont’d)

A1: EMISSIONS (Cont’d)

Pollutants Emissions

The major pollutants emissions of the Group are due
to the use of vehicles. In Year 2018, Shijiazhuang
Enjian had not use gaseous fuel such as towngas
and LPG. Shijiazhuang Enjian owns 2 motor vehicles,
which are mainly used by the management for picking
up customers or attending external meetings and also
by staff for daily travel or business purposes. During
the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group consumed
about 5,700 litres of gasoline. The consumption of
fuels lead to the emission of about 2.2149 kg of
sulphur oxides (SOx), 0.0838 kg of nitrogen oxides
(NOx) and 0.1631 kg of particulate matters (PM).

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group would consume electricity and fuels
for the operations of its advertising business. The
emission of carbon dioxide (CO2) has been calculated
by the quantity of energy consumed multiple by the
emission factors and the emission of CO: are used
tonnes as unit. The emissions of CO2 are broadly
classified into three scopes:

Scope 1 — Direct emissions from combustion of fuels,
Scope 2 — Energy indirect emissions; and
Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Cont’d) A REBRE(F)

A1: EMISSIONS (Cont’d) 1: BB (&)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Cont’d)

The combustion of about 5,700 litres of gasoline,
15.4 tonnes of CO: has been produced (Scope 1).
Further, the Group consumed about 22,000 kWh
of electricity which contributed to the emissions of
about 22 tonnes of CO: (Scope 2). About 3.3 tonnes
of CO:2 have been produced from other indirect
emissions (Scope 3), including paper waste disposed
at landfills, electricity used for processing fresh water
and sewage by government departments produced
and business air travel of the Group’s employees. To
sum up, about 40.7 tonnes of CO: has been produced
by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018.

In order to minimize the number of wastes generated,
Shijiazhuang Enjian proactively recycles papers, toner
cartridges and electronic waste.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

In Year 2018, there was no material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to waste
gas and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non- hazardous wastes that have a significant impact
on the Group. Furthermore, no significant fines or
non— monetary sanctions for non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations were imposed on us in
Year 2018.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Cont’d)

A2: USE OF RESOURCES

Environmental policy and performance, and
environmental conservation is always one of the
Group’s concerns. With respect to the business,
the Group understands that materials used could
have direct impact on the quality of advertisements
and surrounding environment, as such, it sources
and selects environmentally friendly materials. The
Group requires major suppliers to use 3M materials
or equivalent, i.e. those adopting main material
component of Polyolefin as plastic material of
advertising picture, therefore, the waste produced will
not cause serious pollution problems.

The Group not only strictly abide by the Energy
Conservation Law of the People's Republic of
China, but also develops employees in resources
saving and recycling habits in daily life. The Group
closely monitors the use of resources to ensure their
maximum use and avoid wasting in order to protect
natural resources and increase operation efficiency.
Each department of the Group has to report on the
use of resources regularly and response to issues
arisen in a timely manner. In addition, the Group
promotes various measures on resources saving for
enhancing the awareness of energy conservation
and emission reduction, so as to use the resources
effectively.

With respect to administration office, our employees
are provided with low-energy consumption laptops,
and energy-efficient lights are installed in the
office. In addition, the Group enhances employees’
awareness of energy efficiency through channels such
as e-mail and bulletins, encourage employees to turn
off lights and air-conditioners after work. The Group
has increased the number of video equipment in the
office and encourages the use of video conference
to reduce business trips, thereby reducing carbon
emissions due to use of transportation by staff.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREBHRS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Cont’d) A REBRE(F)

A2: USE OF RESOURCES (Cont'd) A2 BRER (&)

Resources consumed Unit Consumption HEAER B A
Water tones 144 7K ] 144
Electricity kWh 22,000 B TR 22,000
Paper used sheets 55,000 R4 o 2K 55,000
In Year 2018, Shijiazhuang Enjian has actively ®n= NEE ARHEBBRERR

£ —
WATZERAS ARRER 21

introduced environmental protection measures in
office spaces, including

o
0

T
fF
i
i
=

b FRAA R 1

&

i. priority use of energy saving lighting and
electrical appliances;

ii. turning off electric equipment and lighting
during non-office hours;

iii. paper saving initiatives including the use of
electronic documents to minimise unnecessary
printing, doubled-sided printing for both internal
and external documents whenever possible;

iv. idle electrical appliances are switched off; and

v. regular maintenance and repair for electrical
appliances to lower energy waste.

In addition, the Group also encourages staff to save
resources, cherish food and avoid waste of resources
by beginning with trivial things.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Cont’d)

A3: ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group encourages all staff to participate in
different kinds of recycling activities and minimize
the use of natural resources. In Year 2018, there is
no significant impact on the environment and natural
resources from the operations of the Group.

Shijiazhuang Enjian actively promotes sustainable
development and environmental protection.
Shijiazhuang Enjian has implemented a series of
the aforesaid measures on utilization of resources
and the operations of office in order to minimize
environmental impact of local areas.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is deeply convinced that maintaining a good
relationship with its employees is one of the keys to
success. To enhance employee satisfaction, the Group
provides employees with competitive remuneration
packages and comprehensive training programs to
encourage them to show their strengths and potential in
full play. The Group organises dinner party for employees
annually to enhance their sense of belongings and create a
friendly and harmonious working environment.

B1: EMPLOYMENT

Human resources are a valuable asset to the
Group. The Group is committed to providing a safe
and healthy environment for all staff, and takes
reasonable steps to safeguard the health and safety
of our employees. The Group also encourages career
development and training, and promotes a healthy
living style with work-life balance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B HEREARS

B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

B1:

EMPLOYMENT (Cont’d)

As at the end of the year of 2018, the proportion
of employees employed by Shijiazhuang Enjian by
age band is as follows: (i) 10% is of 30 years old or
below; (ii) 56.67% is between 30 and 50 years old;
and (iii) 33.33% is over 50 years old. The male/female
composition ratio of the Group is approximately
70%:30%. The charts below show the diversity of the
staff:

Number of Full-time
Employees by Age Group

BREREDZEREEAR

33%

57%

30 years old or below 305Z AT
@ between 30 and 50 years old 305%Z=505%
@ over 50 yearsold 505%A

The Group has established a rigorous performance
appraisal mechanism to maintain the efficiency of the
business operation. The performance of the Group's
employees is reviewed monthly on a related basis
within the general framework of the Group.

In order to sustain the development and inject new
vitality to the Group, the Group organized job fairs
and recruitment activities through online platforms in
2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

B1:

EMPLOYMENT (Cont’d)

The Group has formulated and implemented the
“Code of Conduct for Employees”( (B T17 &8
#) ) to regulate the behaviour of all employees of
the Group in daily activities in meeting the needs of
modern enterprises comprehensively. In the premise
of compliance with the Labor Law ( (& &%) ),
the Labor Contract Law ( (% &4 RJE) ) and the
Industrial Injury Insurance Regulations ( { T &R 5
) ) of the PRC; the Group formulates management
regulations in respect of recruitment, promotion,
dismissal, remuneration,

working hours, holidays,

benefits and retirement. The Group provides
employees with competitive salaries and benefits and
makes adjustments to salaries and benefits in a timely
manner according to the prevailing market conditions,
attract and retain talents and enhance their sense of
belongings.

As equal opportunity employer, the Group is
committed to providing a working environment
that is free from discrimination on the basis of race,
color, creed, sex, age, religion, national origin, or
disability. This includes employment practices, such
as hiring, transfer, recruitment, training, promotion,
discipline, rates of pay and benefits, in order to
ensure employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment. We are committed
to creating a corporate culture and a working
atmosphere of equality, respect, diversity and mutual

support.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

B1:

B2:

EMPLOYMENT (Cont’d)
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

In Year 2018, The Group was not aware of
any material violation of the relevant laws and
regulations relating to the Group’s compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.
In addition, no significant fines or sanctions were
imposed on us due to non-compliance with the

relevant laws and regulations in Year 2018.
HEALTH AND SAFETY

Shijiazhuang Enjian provides its employees a
comprehensive free annual health check by the Health
Management Center of Bethune International Peace
Hospital of PLA, China.

The Group has formulated and carried out Safety

Management Rules ( (22 E®E#E) ), including:

i. compliance with national safety production rules
and regulations by employees to improve their
safety awareness;

ii. improvement of safety measures to perform
a good job in security work. Employees are
required to do prevention work within their
responsible working area, such as taking

fireproof and theftproof measures, when they

are off duty; and

iii. arrangement of special personnel to conduct
frequent safety check and supervision and train
staff, so as to create a stable and safe working
environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R 1B
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B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

B2:

B3:

HEALTH AND SAFETY (Cont’d)
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

In Year 2018, the Group was not aware of any
material violation of relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact regarding the provision
of a safe working environment and the protection of
employees from the Group's occupational hazards. In
addition, there was no material penalty or sanction
imposed due to non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations in Year 2018.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group aims to create an environment of
continuous improvement in which our employees
are encouraged to pursue excellence at work and
career development. Customised training programmes
are arranged for staff members at different levels
and from across its divisions on an ongoing basis
throughout the Group. Induction programme was
offered to new joiners to help them adapt to the new

working environment.

In Year 2018, the Group provided various practical
training programs for employees, including:

legal knowledge training on contract clauses;
ii. training on market development and positioning;

iii. training on operation procedures in aspect of
various department;

iv.  proper internal communication guidance;

v.  training on communication skills with customers;
and

vi. makeup training and related etiquette training.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont'd) B. HE8&E (&)
B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING (Cont'd) B3: ERIEZI (&)
The Group has formulated and implemented Staff REBGEIN BT (B THI K
Training Policies ( (B T I BEK) ) to provide ) REEENEINERESH
appropriate training and development opportunities TEI #mEINEIREREBLE
for employees, thereby achieving the training and R REE 2 AEBEFIFT BI85 A A
business objectives. The details regarding the Group's RERTEAERILTRRE TRHE
internal training programs will be displayed in the BIEFER -

bulletin board and updated training information will
be provided to employees from time to time.

The Group will arrange induction training courses REESTHRABE T2 MABIE

for new employees, provide them the information JIRE REEELAEEZER B

regarding the Group, which includes: SEE

i.  the structure and missions of the Group; i REEMSEBMESD

ii. the importance of employees’ contributions to i. BIZERBEAEEXINEE
the Group's success; 15

ii. training on operation procedures in aspect of i, FEFIRRERFEI

various department;

iv. the relationship between staff’'s own department v. BT HHIPIEEAMIPIAEH
and other departments; and 7 &
v. office procedures; and show them around the v. WAERF REFTRILE -

different departments.
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B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

B4: LABOR STANDARDS

The Group is aware that the employment of child
labour and forced labour is a serious breach of
universal values and is therefore responsible for
striving to prevent all employment of child labour
and forced labour and is in strict compliance with
all laws and regulations relating to the prohibition
of employment of child labour and forced labour.
The Group strictly complies with the labour contract
system. All employees will sign a labour contract or
employment agreement with the Group upon official
employment and the Group will check the relevant
certificates of the employees when they are officially
employed.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

In Year 2018, the Group was not aware of any
material violation of the relevant laws and regulations
prohibiting the employment of child labour or forced
labour in the Group. In addition, there was no
material penalty or sanction due to non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations in Year 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HEREBHRS

B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d) B.

B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 5. HERESE

The Group selects suppliers stringently and suitable
advertising production suppliers are selected in
accordance with the Regulations on Control of
Advertisements ( {EE B IREMHI) ) of the PRC. The
Group considers our suppliers as strategic partners
and contributors to our businesses and we strive to
build long-term relationships with suppliers who share
our values.

The Group encourages suppliers, business partners
and their associates to follow the same standards of
integrity and transparency in doing business with us.
The Group is deeply concerned about the production
quality of suppliers and regards it as one of important
conditions for the selection of suppliers. In addition
to the technical capabilities, delivery time and price
competitiveness of business partners, the Group is
also concerned about the environmental and social
performance within the supply chain and from time
to time prompts its business partners to pay more
attention to sustainable development issues. The
Group requires suppliers to use 3M materials or
equivalent, the main ingredient of which is Polyolefin.
This polymer is biodegradable and will not release
poisonous gas during combustion; therefore, the
waste produced will not cause serious pollution
problems.
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B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group observes the Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China ( (FZEARXMEERE) ),
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
(CFZE AR X AMBE E S JE) ) and relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC. Before publishing an
advertisement, Shijiazhuang Enjian requires customers
to check whether the documentary evidence and
advertising drawings submitted by them comply
with the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China.

Safety Keeping Practice

The Group has a confidentiality policy relating to
observing and protecting intellectual property rights
which comply with the Group’s policy applicable
to all locations for consumer data protection and
privacy policy. For the protection of customer privacy,
customer information is kept in strict confidence and
destroyed if appropriate.

During the period of advertisement publication,
if there are requirements from government
regarding the position and size of an advertisement,
Shijiazhuang Enjian will carry out accordingly.

Comply with relevant laws and regulations

In the Year 2018, the Group was not aware of any
material violation of the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact regarding the health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy of the
products provided by the Group and the remedial
methods. In addition, material fines were not
reported in the Year 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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HEREBRRSE

B. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

B7:

B8:

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group attaches great importance to anti-
corruption work. The Employee Manual sets out the
standards of conduct that all employees are required
to follow.

The Group has set up a Complaints Unit and has a
dedicated hotline and e-mail in place so that insiders
are able to report any unlawful or fraudulent conduct
to the Complaints Unit in a confidential manner, and
the whistleblowing person will be protected. The
dedicated e-mail is published on the Group’s website
(www.it-holdings.com.hk).

The Group has reviewed its code of practice, anti-
corruption measures and related guidelines on a
regular basis, and investigates reported misconduct
acts.

Comply with relevant laws and regulations

In Year 2018, none of the Group or its employees was
involved in any legal proceedings relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group strives to assist the community where its
operates to create a harmonious, dynamic and livable
environment having taking into account priorities
such as local culture, environment and community
during the publication and design of advertisement.
The Group maintains its appropriate community
participation, supports community activities and
encourages employees to participate in activities and
community services with the aim of maintaining a
balance between work and life.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWSE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Company’s principal activities of the Group during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
operating segments are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s consolidated results for the year ended 30 June
2018 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 79 to
87.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results of the Group for each of the five
years ended 30 June 2018 and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 30 June 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014
respectively is set out on page 5 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group's performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its financial performance
and financial position are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 13 of

this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group's financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects would be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties including market risk, credit risk, and

liquidity risk. The risks and uncertainties of the Group are
shown in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group commits to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in
an environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours
to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use
of resources, energy saving and waste reduction.

The Group also commits to the principle and practice of
recycling and reducing. To help conserve the environment, it
implements green office practices such as re-deployment of
office furniture as far as possible, encourage use of recycled
paper for printing and copying, double-sided printing and
copying,
lightings, air conditioning and electrical appliances.

reduce energy consumption by switching off idle

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group was not subject to
any environmental penalty.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of
the Group. During the year, there was no material breach
of or material non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group except the non-compliance shown in
the corporate governance report of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

During the year, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or other
stakeholders except the litigations shown in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the applicable laws and regulations,
every director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution of
their duties in their respective offices. Such permitted indemnity
provision has been in force throughout the year. The Company
has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance cover for the directors and officers of the Company
and its subsidiaries.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year ended 30 June 2018, (i) the CB1 amounting to
HK$500,000 have been converted into 5,000,000 shares; and
(ii) the CB2 amounting to HK$5 million have been converted
into 50,000,000 shares.

Details of the convertible bonds of the Company and its
movement during the year are set out in the section headed
"Capital Structure” on pages 10 to 11 of this annual report
and note 26 to the consolidation financial statements
respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 30 June 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 84 of
this annual report and in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

The Company had no distributable reserve as at 30 June 2018
(2016: Nil).
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

DONATIONS

No charitable donations was made by the Group during the
year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended
from time to time) which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares of the Company on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers and cost of sales from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 29% and 80% of the total sales
and cost of sales for the year ended 30 June 2018 respectively.

The Group's largest customer and supplier accounted for
approximately 7% and 56% of the total sales and cost of sales
for the year ended 30 June 2018 respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the total number of
issued share of the Company) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers for
the year ended 30 June 2018.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no significant transactions which
require to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Pu Haiyong (appointed on 20 June 2018)
Mr. Wang Yu (appointed on 16 August 2018)
Mr. Ha Chuen Yeung (resigned on 16 August 2018)
Mr. Lau King Hang
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing
Mr. Mazher Hussain
(resigned on 20 June 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Chung Nam (appointed on 3 August 2018)
Mr. Wong Ting Kon

(appointed on 15 February 2018)

(resigned on 3 August 2018)
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas (resigned on 15 February 2018)
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming
Ms. Liu Jianyi

In accordance with bye-law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-laws, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
Accordingly, Mr. Lau King Hang and Ms. Liu Jianyi shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any
Director appointed by the Board shall hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. Pu Haiyong, Mr. Wang Yu and Mr. Leung
Chung Nam shall retire at the AGM and being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWSE

DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to be
independent.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out on pages 14 to
18 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract and each of the independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company
commencing from their respective date of appointment. All of
them are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Mr. Pu Haiyong who is executive Director, and chairman entered
into the service contract with the Company for a term of two
years commencing from 20 June 2018 and shall continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three month notice in writing.

Mr. Wang Yu who is executive director and chief executive
officer, entered into the service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 16 August 2018, and
shall continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
to the other not less than three months notice in writing.

Mr. Leung Chung Nam who is an independent non-executive
director and chair of audit committee and members of each of
remuneration committee and nomination committee entered
into the service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 3 August 2018,and shall continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three months notice in writing.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS (Cont’d)

Mr. Lau King Hang who is executive Director, entered into the
service contract with the Company for a term of two years
commencing from 24 March 2016 and shall continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than three month notice in writing. As at 24 March 2018, such
service contract has been renewed.

Dr. Chan Yiu Wing who is executive Director, entered into the
service contract with the Company for a term of two years
commencing from 24 March 2016 and shall continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other not less
than three month notice in writing. As at 30 June 2018, such
service contract has not been terminated by either party.

Mr. Tse Yuen Ming who is independent non-executive Director,
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 13 November 2014. As
at 13 November 2017, such service contract has been renewed.

Ms. Liu Jianyi who is independent non-executive Director
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 24 March 2016.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWSE

DIRECTORS' OR CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2018, none of the Directors nor the chief
executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests and short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required to be recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors as set
out in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme which was adopted on 5
July 2002 (“Old Scheme”) has expired and a new share option
scheme (“New Scheme”, together with Old Scheme, the “Share
Option Schemes”) was adopted by an ordinary resolution
passed by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 23 November 2012 (“Adoption Date").
The New Scheme constitutes a share option scheme governed
by Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules and will remain in
force for 10 years from the Adoption Date. Apart from the
Share Option Schemes, the Company has no other share option
scheme as at 30 June 2018.

Upon the expiry of the Old Scheme, no further option can be
offered thereunder but any options granted prior to such expiry
but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable.

The purpose of the Share Option Schemes are to enable the
Company to grant options to the Participants (as defined
below) as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
Company or its subsidiaries.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

Participants under the Share Option Schemes include any
employee or consultant, advisor, agent, contractor, client or
supplier of the Company or any of its subsidiaries who is in
the sole opinion of the Board has contributed or is expected
to contribute to the Group. The principal terms of the share
option schemes are summarized as follow:

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least the highest
of:

(i) the nominal value of the shares;

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant which must be a business day; and

(iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within
28 days from the date of grant. An option must be exercised
within 10 years from the date on which it is granted or such
shorter period as the Board may specify at the time of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Schemes and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not, in the absence of shareholders’ approval, in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of approval of the Share Option Schemes. The
Company may seek approval by the shareholders at general
meeting to refresh the 10% limit (the “Option Scheme Limit").
However, the total number of shares available for issue under
exercise of options which may be granted under the Share
Option Schemes in these circumstances must not exceed 10%
of the number of the issued share of the Company as at the
date of approval of the refreshment of the Option Scheme
Limit.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWSE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’'d)

The Option Scheme Limit has been refreshed on 30 December
2014 at the general meeting. Based on 796,246,784 shares of
the Company in issue as at 30 December 2014, the maximum
number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
the exercise of all the options granted or to be granted under
the New Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 79,624,678 shares,
being 10% of the shares in issue as at 30 December 2014. The
Company has not granted any options under the New Scheme
since its adoption.

As at 30 June 2018, (i) there were 5,340 options granted and
outstanding under the Old Scheme representing approximately
0.0005% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue as at 30 June 2018; and (ii) the Company was allowed to
grant options up to 15,924,935 Shares under the New Scheme
(after adjustment as a result of the Capital Reorganization
effective on 4 November 2016).

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which then have been granted and have
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Schemes and any
other share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in any 12-month period to:

(i) each eligible Participant must not exceed 1.0% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive director must not exceed 0.1%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue and
not exceed HK$5.0 million in aggregate value.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

Particulars of the movement of the outstanding options in
aggregate granted under the Old Scheme during the year

ended 30 June 2018, were as follows:

Number of share options

BRETE (&

RBE_ZT-\FRA=THILFE REE:

FRHZHARTTEBREABEDHBET:

BREHE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
asat 1 July during during during  as at 30 June Exercise price
Date of grant 2017 the year the year the year 2018 Option period per share
RoB-t%F RZB-NE
tA-8 ABEtA
RHAH AR FRRL ERfTR EREN HATE BRESR BRITER
Former directors, senior management, 9 September 2008 995 - - - 995 9 September 2008 to HK$5,396.95
other employees and consultants 8 September 2018
HMEZ BRERE AtEERER “2E\FNANA “2EN\EAANEE 5,396.95%
ZE-N\ERANA
11 September 2008 709 - - - 709 11 September 2008 to HK$6,047.30
10 September 2018
“ER\FNAT-R “RRN\FAAT-RE 6,047,307
Z2-\ENATR
16 December 2008 709 - - - 709 16 December 2008 to HK$2,363.50
15 December 2018
ZEEN\ETATRE ZETN\Ft-A+AEE 23635087
ZE-N\E+ZAtaA
17 February 2009 386 - - - 386 17 February 2009 to HK$3,070.90
16 February 2019
ZEENFZATER ZEENFCATLAE 3,070.90% 7T
“E2-nE-ATRA
29 May 2009 386 S = S 386 29 May 2009 to HK$2,728.60
28 May 2019
ZERAFRACZTAR ZEENFRAZTARE 2,728.60% T
ZZ-nERAZHNR
31 December 2009 2,04 - - - 220 31 December 2009 to HK$1,395.30
30 December 2019
“ERAETZAZT-H SERAFTCAST-RE 13953087
“E2-hE+-AZTH
15 January 2010 1,935 - - - 1,935 15 January 2010 to HK$2,264.05
14 January 2020
Z2-ZE-f1HA ZZ-T5-AtRAZE 2,264.05% 7T
“Z-Z5-A1EA
Total 5340 - - - 5340
&5t
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 30 June 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons, not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
position in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the K& :

SFO:

Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company

TERRRROREERD 2E®m K

NN

IR B

R-ZZE-N\FXNA=TH BEFHM TIHA
T (EHFEFHARATBTRAE) RN
AN REIRESERAREESFLH
EIRPIEXVERE2 K 535 &F 2 R X [ A A B 3
BZEDSIAR  INARRAREBEELFLBE
GOIEIBCKRATFEZERM LCH 2 ek

REQXARGREERD ZHFR

Total number
Number of  of Shares and

Number of underlying underlying  Approximately
shares shares shares  percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity interested interested interested  shareholding
BEERZ ERER: REEZEZRH BEREL
BRREB/HE 5 ROBE HEROHE REERGAH Al
(Note 2)
(Hfi2)
Wealthy ELM Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 250,000,000 600,000,000 850,000,000 51.42%
Wealthy ELM Limited ( #7327) ERBEAA
Pu Haiyong (Note 1) Beneficial owner 250,000,000 600,000,000 850,000,000 51.42%
EEB(Wit1) BERBEAA
Profit Eagle Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 80,000,000 - 80,000,000 4.84%
Profit Eagle Limited ( #/:22) ExEEA
Lee Kuo-Juy (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 80,000,000 = 80,000,000 4.84%
FBlIn (fit2) RErEER
Leung Ka Wei Angela Beneficial owner 67,030,000 - 67,030,000 4.06%
R5E BERBEAA

Notes: 1. Wealthy ELM Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Pu Haiyong and,  /fi#:
therefore, Mr. Pu Haiyong is deemed to be interested in the
850,000,000 shares and underlying shares held by Wealthy ELM

Limited.

2. Profit Eagle Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Lee Kuo-Juy and,

therefore, Mr. Lee Kuo-Juy is deemed to be interested in the
80,000,000 shares and underlying shares held by Profit Eagle Limited.

3. These shares may be allotted and issued upon exercise of the

conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds issued by the

Company.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, the Directors are
not aware of any other person, other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company who had, or was deemed
to have, interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares that has to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June 2018 are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEMES” and “DIRECTORS’" OR CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES" above, at no time
during the year ended 30 June 2018 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined
in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors, the management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete either directly
or indirectly with the business of the Group, or have any other
conflict of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 30 June 2018.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 19 to 41 of this annual
report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed a total of 70
employees (including Directors) (2016: 67), and the total
remuneration (including Directors’ remuneration) for the
year ended 30 June 2018 was approximately HK$8,089,000
(2017: HK$9,643,000). The Group remunerates its employees
based on their individual performance, working experience,
qualification and the prevailing market price. Other benefits
provided by the Group to the employee include mandatory
provident fund, insurance and medical coverage, training
programs and share option scheme.

The Company adopted the Share Option Schemes where share
options to subscribe for shares of the Company may be granted
to the eligible participants of the Group. No share options
have been granted to the eligible participants under the New
Scheme during the year ended 30 June 2018.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Other than operating the statutory mandatory provident fund
scheme for Hong Kong employees and participating in social
insurance for its employees in the PRC in accordance with the
relevant PRC regulations, the Group has not operated any other
retirement benefits schemes for the Group’s employees.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWSE

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There are no significant events after the reporting period.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the GEM Listing Rules, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors.

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the
Company on 8 August 2016 to fill the casual vacancy following
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited ceased to act as auditor
of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 March 2016.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2018 have been audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited
who will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA

Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of
Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the
Company at www.it-holdings.com.hk.

On behalf of the Board
INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
Wang Yu

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD R

10th Floor

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”)
set out on pages 79 to 200, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and as to whether the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. Because of the significance of the matter described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties related to the going concern basis

As disclosed in page 82 to consolidated financial statements,
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$174,478,000 and capital deficiency of approximately
HK$174,232,000 as at 30 June 2018. The existence of these
uncertainties casts significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD R

Nevertheless, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the assumption that the Group will continue
as a going concern, the validity of which is dependent on
the favourable outcomes of the steps being taken by the
directors as described in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements. However, we were unable to obtain sufficient audit
evidence to assess the appropriateness and validity of the going
concern assumption. Should the going concern assumption be
inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made to reclassify
all non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities, write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts and to provide for any further liabilities which may
arise. These consolidated financial statements do not include
any of those adjustments.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M A% BRM R 5

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’'s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and to issue an
auditor’s report. However, because of the matter described in
the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Yip Kai Yin with Practising
Certificate Number PO5131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 September 2018

10/F., 8 Observatory Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

meERBREX

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—LF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
B at FET FET
Revenue Wz 5 33,272 48,121
Cost of sales HE KA (35,837) (46,029)
Gross (loss)/profit E (38) /# (2,565) 2,092
Other income H b g A 6 12,356 2,618
Marketing and promotion expenses MiGHE NS EH & (1,139) (987)
Administrative expenses ITHF (30,384) (31,263)
Finance costs HBER 7 (392) (4,898)
Changes in fair value of financial & AF A ABZHZ
assets at fair value PREECATEESY
through profit or loss (32) 10
Extinguishment of repayment of BB &} =%
promissory notes - (289,250)
Extinguishment of repayment of  BEEE
borrowings - (196,986)
Loss on issuance of BT BmRES 2B
convertible bonds - (101,088)
Gain/(loss) upon conversion of Rian R E SR
convertible bonds Wz (E1E) 37,014 (91,855)
Fair value gain/(loss) on AIBRESZ
convertible bonds NFEWZE (FEE) 403,200 (242,315)
Impairment loss on investment KEZR® 2 REEE
deposits (15,000) -
Impairment loss on EREZREEE
loan receivables - (6,000)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRFTEHRAEF, (BEiE) 8 403,058 (959,922)
Income tax PS5 9 (863) 106
Profit/(loss) for the year FrwEF (BR) 402,195 (959,816)

Annual Report 17/18 ¥ 17/18

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED E AR AR AR

79



80

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEeEBEER
For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
iz FET FE T
Profit/(loss) for the year TH AL
attributable to: FEREF (FE)
Owners of the Company PAN/NETEF =N 11 402,195 (959,816)
Earning/(loss) per share ARABHEBAEWN
attributable to BEREAN,(FE)
the owners of the Company 12
- Basic (HK$ per share) —EXR(ZEET) 0.394 (2.01)
- Diluted (HK$ per share) —#E (8RET) (0.023) (2.01)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these MM FEAEZSHGEAMBHRR ZAKITD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SEeREEREMEZERAR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHETT
Profit/(loss) for the year FE®RA(BR) 402,195 (959,816)
Other comprehensive income FEHMEZEmKEA
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified HigngamoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: B=moEE
Exchange differences on translation of &G /N B A 7B 1% ¥k &%
financial statements of EECERERE
overseas subsidiaries (3.001) 3,119
Other comprehensive income FEHMEZEmEA
for the year (3,001) 3,119
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) FE2EHMN(E8)BE
for the year 399,194 (956,697)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) TIAALTEEEEZ®E
for the year attributable to: wmF L (EE) 8B
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE TSN 399,194 (956,697)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

As at 30 June 2018 R=-ZF—NFNA=+H

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LERY e 14 246 473
Intangible assets mREE 15 = =
Investment deposits REZRS 20 - 15,000
246 15,473
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value BERAFEGFABRZ
through profit or loss TREE 17 21 53
Accounts receivable & I BR X 18 2,282 2,658
Loan receivables e B 3R 19 6,851 =
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FERFIE iR & &
receivables H b e U 5k I8 20 13,177 4,444
Cash and cash equivalents HehReEEY 21 4,883 10,806
27,214 17,961
Current liabilities REBEE
Account payables, accrued EAER B ERAR
expenses and other payables H b e~ 5RI8 22 55,150 34,421
Borrowings BE 24 10,500 =
Promissory notes EAHER 25 - =
Convertible bonds AR EH 26 118,800 43,640
Tax payable JE B IR 17,242 13,249
201,692 91,310
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (174,478) (73,349)
Total assets less current MEERRBAE
liabilities (174,232) (57,876)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

As at 30 June 2018 R-ZF—FNA=+H

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
ok FAETT FEL

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Convertible bonds Al 2 I 1B & 26 = 526,350
Deferred taxation RIEF I 27 - =
- 526,350
Net liabilities BEERE (174,232) (584,226)

Equity s

Share capital % 2 28 10,529 9,979
Reserves i) 37 (184,761) (594,205)
Total deficit B A4 EE (174,232) (584,226)

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 September
2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Yu
TF
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBREH X

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

Share Capital
Share Share option  Contributed  redemption Exchange Other  Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve Teserves losses Total
iz ROER  BRERS BABE HIREREE EifE AR RitER @t
HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET AT AT AT Er AT AT FEr FEr
At 1 July 2016 79,625 1,049,931 38,628 52,959 43 161 (183) (1,354,934) (134,330)
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (959,816) (959,816)
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; RE R
Exchange difference on translation of BEENNBARGBERE
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries EEZEREE - - - - - 3,119 S S 3,119
Total comprehensive income for the year FRRANAEE - - - - - 3119 - (959,816) (956,697)
Placing of shares 16,243 9219 - - - = = = 25,462
Capital reorganisation (93,639) - = 93,639 = & S = =
Issue of subscription shares 750 36,750 - - - - - - 37,500
Issue of shares upon exercise of convertible bonds 7,000 436,839 - - - - - - 443839
At 30 June 2017 9979 1,532,739 38,628 146,598 3 3,280 (183) (2,314,750) (584,226)
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 402,195 402,195
Other comprehensive loss for the year.
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange difference on translation of
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries - - - - - (3,001) - - (3,001)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EMALE = = = = = (3,001) - 402,195 399,194
Lapse of share option BREAK - - 23133) - - - - 23,133 S
Issue of shares upon exercise of convertible bonds RTETR 550 10,250 - - - - S S 10,800
At 30 June 2018 R=F-NERA=1R 10,529 1,542,989 15,495 146,598 5] 219 (743) (1,889,422) (174,232)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FEMWFAZERAMBRER ZAKIH -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERETRER

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—LF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
&t FET FET
Cash flows from operating REXBEEZ
activities BERE
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHEF, (EE) 402,195 (959,816)
Adjustments for: MATHBELRAE:
Income tax FriS%t 9 863 (106)
Depreciation e 14 266 256
Impairment loss on account FEWRR R 2 R E &R
receivables 1,098 395
Impairment loss on investment KBRS ZREERE
deposit 15,000 -
Amortisation of intangible BV EE#E
assets 15 - 423
Interest income FEWA (4) (114)
Dividend income g B A 6 (2) (2)
Extinguishment on repayment BEEEER
of promissory notes = 289,250
Extinguishment on repayment BEEEE
of borrowings - 196,986
Fair value (gain)/loss on AR ES 2 N FE
convertible bonds (Yezs) BB (403,200) 242,315
Loss on issuance of BTAIMRES 2 BB
convertible bonds - 101,088
(Gain)/loss on conversion of Rin R ESE 2
convertible bonds (Wa) &8 (37,014) 91,855
Change in fair value financial BAVFEFABRZ
assets at fair value through TREEZAFE
profit or loss #E) 32 (10)
Finance costs i E R 7 392 4,898
Loss on disposal property, plant LEME HEK
and equipment BB EE - 10
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHEMEBR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—LF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
&t FET FET
Operating cash flows before RIAEEESEBAIZ
movements in working REBERE
capital (20,374) (32,572)
(Increase)/decrease in FEUBRF () R
account receivables (722) 384
Increase in loan receivables JE U & R N (6,851) =
(Increase)/decrease in BEAZE e R
prepayments, deposits and A E S
other receivables (#m),md (8,733) 1,577
Increase in trade payables, HORMNERER BT ERAK
accrued expenses and other Eh JE < FRIEIE AN
payables 23,359 2,498
Net cash used in operating REXKFAZ
activities REFR (13,321) (28,113)
Cash flows from investing RETHEEZ
activities REeRE
Interest received 2R B 4 114
Dividend received 2R & 2 2
Payment for purchase of BEVE BEX
property, plant and equipment B PANEN (35) (151)
Net cash used in investing RETEFAZ
activities RE&FHE (29) (35)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv—_ﬁ | Iﬁ:ﬁ/)lbi '%E

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —+
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
&t FET FHETT
Cash flows from financing METHEEZ
activities BERE
Proceeds from borrowings EE RS IE 11,400 9,000
Repayment of borrowings EREE (900) (21,500)
Net proceeds from issue of BOABRRES
convertible bonds FriS ;IR F 58 - 24,329
Net proceeds from placing of fic & I {0 P15 XI5 58
shares - 25,462
Net proceeds from issue of BITRBEROME
subscription shares RIEF#E - 750
Interest paid EATH S (68) (4,898)
Net cash generated from METBHEEZ
financing activities REeFE 10,432 33,143
Net increase/(decrease) in HeERBASEEYEM
cash and cash equivalents (R2)F&E (2,918) 4,995
Effect of foreign exchange IEEZSBH2EE
rate changes (3,005) 373
Cash and cash equivalents at FHZHRERRESEEY
the beginning of the year 10,806 5,438
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRZEESRBESEEY
the end of the year 4,883 10,806
Analysis of balances of cash ReRESEEY
and cash equivalents: Eeho T
Being: =X
Cash and cash equivalents e kReZEEYD 21 4,883 10,806

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 19 November 2001 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act of Bermuda. The shares of the Company
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and 1015, Level 10,
Tower 1, Grand Century Place, Mong Kok, Kowloon, Hong
Kong respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
engaged in the provision of outdoor advertising on buses
and bus stations and television advertising operation in the
People’s Republic of China and event management and
marketing services in Hong Kong.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition to
Deferred Tax Assets for
unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Annual Improvement to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Company's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont'd)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 and Revenue from Contracts with

amendments to HKFRS 15 Customers’
HKFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of

and HKAS 28 Assets between an

Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture’

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendments,
Curtailment or Settlement®

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint

Ventures?
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers on Investment

Property’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle?

Amendments HKFRSs Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-2017°

HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted. Overlay approach to be applied
when IFRS 9 is first applied. Deferral approach effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and only available for
three years after that date

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a)
classification and measurement of financial assets, b)
impairment of financial assets and c¢) general hedge
accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and
measurement of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires all
recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of each of the subsequent
accounting periods. Debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Further, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss and that cumulative
fair value changes will not be reclassified to profit or loss
upon derecognition of the investment.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of a financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such
changes in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

With regard to impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
has adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model required under HKAS 39.
In general, the expected credit loss model requires an
entity to assess the change in credit risk of the financial
asset since initial recognition at each reporting date and
to recognise the expected credit loss depending on the
degree of the change in credit risk.

With regard to the general hedge accounting
requirements, HKFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge
accounting mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39.
Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to
the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact
of HKFRS 9. The directors of the Company believe that it
is impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition.

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact
of HKFRS 15. The directors of the Company believe that it
is impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.

HKFRS 16 Leases
HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance

including HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction of
operating leases and finance leases, as required by HKAS
17, has been replaced by a model which requires a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability to be recognised
for all leases by lessees except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets. Specifically, the right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments. Furthermore, the classification of cash
flows will also be affected as operating lease payments
under HKAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows;
whereas, under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments
will be split into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively.

With regard to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company believe that it
is impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange of assets.

Item included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
Hong Kong dollar is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Cont’d)

(i) Going concern basis

In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity
not withstanding that:

e The Group had consolidated net current
liabilities and capital deficiency of
approximately HK$174,478,000 (2017:
HK$73,349,000) and HK$174,252,000
(2017: HK$584,226,000) respectively as at
30 June 2018.

The Directors reviewed the Group's financial and
liquidity position, and have taken the following
actions to mitigate the liquidity issues faced by
the Group:

(@) possible fund raising activities including, but
not limited to, further placing, rights issues
or open offer are to be attempted;

(b) the Group is planning and implementing
a growth strategy to develop and
expand existing business. The Group is in
negotiation with a number of customers
and in arm’s length, sales agreements such
as mobile e-sports, on-line advertising will
be completed and implemented; and

() the management plans to dispose of
business undertakings which would cut
losses to the Group and also result in
better allocation of resources. Also, the
management plans to explore new business
which will provide a growing and recurring
source of income.

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost
controls over various costs and expenses and to
seek new investment and business opportunities
with an aim to attain profitable and positive cash
flow operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Cont’d)

(i)

Going concern basis (Cont’d)

The applicability of the going concern basis
is dependent on the favourable outcome of
the proposed measures being implemented by
the Group, in order for the Group to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due and to
finance its future working capital and financial
needs. These consolidated financial statements
do not include any adjustments that may result
if the measures could not be implemented
successfully. If the proposed measures could
not proceed successfully and the going concern
basis was not be appropriate, adjustments would
have to be made to the consolidated financial
statements to reduce the value of the assets
of the Group to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
in light of the various measures or arrangements
implemented or will be implemented after the
end of the reporting period, the Group will
have sufficient working capital for its current
requirements and it is reasonable to expect the
Group to remain a commercially viable concern.
Accordingly, the directors considered that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. TERERBE (&)

(c)

REEE

HRAMBREBREARBTRARE
(EMBR) sl c B (B
FIEMER) M BEHRE - WAREE
REEREBIVBENEEREK &
b E 5 75 R BXUS A & - BIERAS 4% I
e

RERNMBBREEZMBRF 2K
XBWBERA MRS HELEME S
(WER) LRt AGaBRE R EME®E
WAK-BLEZ2ERAERESR
BRARAGEE AN G
B st B E EOR T M e AR H IR
I A o

KBRS B A Rz M |ERAIEL
HE ASREZEARRELKE
HMAK B AR AEAER K-

SERNMERBZBZAER S &
BB ARG BIEH-

Annual Report 17/18 £%§ 17/18



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= AN

2N

|

B % R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of
the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests
that are not owned by the Company, whether directly
or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(Cont’d)

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position
depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e) Business combination (Cont’d)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
the fair value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to
the share-based payment transactions of the
acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with share-
based payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal Groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the Group's
interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(e) Business combination (Cont’d)

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

Where the consideration the Group transfers
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39 financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e) Business combination (Cont’d)

()

Where a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control)
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(f) Goodwill (Cont’d)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less that the carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at cost, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments.

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are
subsequently stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at amortised cost less impairment
losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

(Cont’d)

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses.

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, except foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend income
from these investment is recognised in profit or
loss and, where these investments are interest-
bearing, interest calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or loss. When
these investments are derecognised or impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(h) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Valuation

Property, plant and equipment are stated in
the consolidated and company statements
of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure relating to a property,
plant and equipment that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying amount
of the asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the
existing asset, will flow to the Group. All other
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

(ii) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the

cost of assets less their residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method as

follows:
Leasehold Over the remaining terms
improvements of the leases but not
exceeding 5 years
Furniture and 5 years
fixtures
Equipment 5 years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

(iii) Disposals

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gains or
losses arising from the disposal or retirement
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Intangible assets

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset
after its purchase or its completion is recognised
as an expense when it is incurred unless it is
probable that the expenditure will enable the
asset to generate future economic benefits
in excess of its originally assessed standard
of performance and this expenditure can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably.
If these conditions are met, the subsequent
expenditure is added to the cost of the
intangible asset.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i) Intangible assets (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Licenses 4 to 7 years
3.3 to 6.3 years
Non-competition agreements 2 years

4.3 to 9.2 years

Customer relationship

Media co-operation
agreement

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

B % R R B R

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

(k)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are written
off as an expense of the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For available-for-sale equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
or

such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

breach of contract,

payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Impairment of assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For unlisted equity securities carried at
cost, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following items may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have been
decreased:

interest in subsidiaries and associates;

property, plant and equipment;

intangible assets; and

goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognised in the profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(k) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)

(i)

(ir)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e.,
generating unit).

a cash-

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(k) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)
(ifi) Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(I) Account and other receivables

Account and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debt except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

B % R R B R

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(n) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model and the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(n) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(iii) Termination benefits

(o)

(i)

(iii)

Termination benefits are recognised when the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility
of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o)

Income tax (Cont’d)

(i) (Cont’d)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference
or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m AR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(o) Income tax (Cont’d)

(i) (Cont’d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o)

Income tax (Cont’d)

(i) (Cont’d)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(p) Account and other payables

Account and other payables are initially measured
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost,
except for short-term payable with no stated interest
rate and the effect of discounting being immaterial
that are measured at their original invoice amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m AR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(gq) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 3(q)
(ii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued
or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note
3(a)(iii).

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(g) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont’d)

(iiij) Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(r) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company may
contain liability, conversion option and early
redemption option components. In respect of the
conversion option component, a conversion option
that will be settled other than by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments
is considered as a conversion option derivative rather
than an equity instrument. An early redemption
option whose exercise price is not approximately
equal on each exercise date to the amortised
cost of the convertible bond is considered as not
closely related to the host contract and hence is an
redemption option derivative. The entire convertible
bond contract containing liability, conversion option
derivative and early redemption option derivative
components may be entirely designated on its
initial recognition as a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, rather than separating out the
derivatives from the host liability contract.

At the date of issue, the convertible bonds are
recognised at fair value on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(r)

(s)

Convertible bonds (Cont’d)

In subsequent reporting periods, convertible bonds
which are designated as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are remeasured to their
fair value as at the end of the reporting periods and
changes in fair values are recognised in profit or
loss. Upon conversion of the convertible bonds, the
convertible bonds are remeasured to their fair value
as at the date of conversion and changes in fair
values are recognised in profit or loss. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of these convertible
bonds are charged to profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

(t)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on the remeasurement of fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(u) Interest-bearing borrowings

(v)

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are carried at amortised costs with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably. Revenue is recognised in the
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Advertising service

Revenue from outdoor advertising spaces is
recognised on a time proportion basis over the
terms of the agreements.

Revenue from the provision of outdoor
advertising displays and media advertisements
agency services are recognised over the term
of the relevant contracts and to the extent
of services rendered or recognised on a
time proportion basis over the terms of the
agreements.

(ii) Event management service

Revenue from event management service is
recognised when service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(v) Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(iii) Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits and loan
receivables on an accrued basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a short period.

(iv) Dividend income

Dividend income from securities and other
investments is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalised as being
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(x) Promissory notes
Promissory notes are recognised initially at their fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m AR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(y) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following condition applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the
third party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. FEEHKE (£)

(y) Related parties (Cont’d) (y) BBEAL (&)
(2) (Cont’d) (2) (#&)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit ) ZEBAAEENELREEH
plan for the benefit of employees of either FHECEBREERBAM
the Group or an entity related to the WAL BER & R T ET B o fin
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the AEBAXRE BZETE - AE
sponsorship employers are also related to EFTEANEEFHEE-
the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled (i) ZEBBX(1)FTSEAIATIE
by a person identified in (1). Sl AL REH] o

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant (vii) RO PTEERIA THZE R
influence over the entity or is a member of BEAFENXABZES
the key management personnel of the entity (RZBEBZERE)FEE
(or of a parent of the entity). BEKE -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ZEBRB HHAE—HEBEMA
which it is a part, provides key management R &R < R A B A Tlﬂ$
personnel services to the Group or to the SEIAEENQRREE
parent of the Group. EERABRE -

A transaction is considered to be a related party W—IBRXS5H BEAT2EFEE
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or BREAEE  AZEXIER L
obligations between related parties. BALTRS-

(z) Foreign currencies (z)
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong PHEBEABLER - AEESEER
Dollars. Each entity in the Group determines its own EEHEAF2NEES Rt AZE
functional currency and items included in the financial B BMmEACEBRAZRIEEE

o

Hﬂi\ﬂ]

statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(z) Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. TERERBE (&)

(2) 5w (&)

REESENEEER M BHRE
B AR ERZINE Eﬁ%%@\\ =’ (4
K)ETZRHGERXZAMZBITE

EHER © %i&iﬁﬁﬂivtw\\ﬁ%‘ﬁlﬁﬁzg
IR E R 2 BITIEREHRE -
AONE DB 2 A AR 2 IFEEIR
BRAFEETEAZRITEREN
BRE - RELRANGTE 2 AINETE
FEBEETTFTEHBRE-

EXEBZEREZRINELSHEA
REBEmER  HERK RN —'EI
¥ ERBEBELZBEGRIN AR
BEASIEE BEBEZAREETT
K(I HRERBIEBREFEL —
B2) WA EAL 2 E AR
REEEYRERAERENNTRE
1B

\ﬂﬂ

B

REAMBRERENME  ALES
NNEBZEERBERNSREHR
ZBITERRE BB T - WZTEE T)
RHRFHYERBE  RIEZANRNE
ERBBEBARE  AFERBERT « BHF
ARGEBZER -FTELENZE
(A )R E A2 E WA R RERIL R
MEH BB~ 2 (BB IS
MR WER) P RE-

Annual Report 17/18 £%§ 17/18



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(z) Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences is re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates, judgments
and associated assumptions are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(i) Impairment loss of loan receivables and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment loss of loan receivables and
other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of each individual debtors including the
current creditworthiness and past collection history.
Management reassesses the provision at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m AR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(ii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

4. BESTAERMGETTIABEREZ
TERR(E)

Rt FTHABEEZ T ERR (&)

(i) W3 - = R R 5 LR B R 5t 1

and accounts receivable

In considering the impairment losses that may
be required for the Group's property, plant and
equipment, recoverable amounts of the assets need
to be determined. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less cost to disposal and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
selling price because quoted market prices for these
assets may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to items
such as the level of sales volume, selling price and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as sales volume, selling price and amount
of operating costs. Impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts are assessed and provided based on
the directors’ regular review of ageing analysis and
evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of
judgment is exercised by the directors when assessing
the credit-worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer. An increase or decrease
in the above impairment losses would affect the net
profit of the Group in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

4. BRSTTHERGAHTHBREZZ
FERR (&)

R THAREEZEEZRR (£)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(iii) Current tax and deferred tax (iii) EUEGH B R EAEFHE
REBERBEBRFEIBMNAEH-
REBBXBREFBEETRZRIE
HURABIEERRIBMBET - K&
ERBREE TN EIINGIE 2 G5
MIEAREEERREE - WZE
B2 RERGHREN S €
AR ABEBEEEHETENED

Z M Az BVHA T 18 KR AT

7ot TE 48 445 o

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were BHERE
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

BERETERZENVBEBER RIT
MEEENEERERRRRERN

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when

management considers it is likely that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and current tax charges in the
period in which such estimates have been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m AR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(iv) Valuation of convertible bonds issued by the

Company designated at fair value through profit
or loss

As at 30 June 2018, the Company has CB1, CB2
and CB3 defined in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements. Since these convertible bonds
contain embedded derivatives as explained in note
26 which are not closely related to the host debt
contract, management decided to designate them
as at financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition. Management engaged
an independent valuer to determine the fair values
of these convertible bonds at initial recognition, on
conversion and at the end of the reporting period.
And since certain key inputs used in the estimation
of the fair values of these convertible bonds cannot
be derived directly from observable active markets,
the fair values have been determined using valuation
techniques with both observable and unobservable
inputs and with certain key assumptions. Changes
in the key assumptions and inputs could significantly
affect the fair values of these convertible bonds and
hence have significant impact in the profit or loss.
The fair value of the convertible bonds designated at
fair value through profit or loss at 30 June 2018 was
HK$118,800,000 (2017: HK$569,990,000). Further
details are given in note 26 to these consolidated
financial statements.
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RUERAREEEEARATE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents income from the advertising
operations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and
event management and marketing services in Hong Kong.

5. W&

The amount of revenue recognised during the year is as

WastgRENPEARKME ([HE])E
LREEMNEB AR E R LT ISHEER
BN - FRERZWESEMT

follow:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HKS$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Outdoor advertising on buses and B+ kBT FINES
bus stations 28,530 46,785
Interest income from money lending A& 2 Fl B YA 369 =
Event management and BB 1R % T 45 HE B AR S
marketing services 4,373 1,336
33,272 48,121
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAA
2018 2017
—®B-NE T —+t%
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 4 114
Reversal of impairment loss on FEWE R 2 M EEERD
loan receivables 3,310 -
Sundry income MU A 9,040 2,502
Dividend income g B A 2 2
12,356 2,618
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BIEH
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HKS$000 HK$°000
FET TET
Interest on other borrowings wholly ~ AR AFREBEEEZ
repayable within five years Hinfg & 2 F& 392 4,898
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

8.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/

BR P 1S AT S 1R

BRATSHRABEE MR, (GFA) TH%

(crediting): A
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE L
(a) Staff cost (including directors’ (a) EIRA (BIEESE
emolument): M) -
Contributions to defined TEREHRET B3R
contribution plan 644 209
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITENMEMET 8,089 9,643
8,733 9,852
Number of employees BEEAB(BREES)
(including directors) 76 67

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= AN
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|

B % R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

8.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 8. BRETEHAIEIE (&)
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—LF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
(b) Other items (b) HfEB
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#E - 423
Auditors’ remuneration ZER N & 880 840
Depreciation on property, plant ME - -BWERERHITE
and equipment 266 256
Operating lease charges in respect MANEMEZ
of office premises KEHERS 896 515
Exchange loss, net ME 5 B9 - 3R 59 6
Change in fair value of EAFEFEABREZ
financial assets at fair value ERMEEZATEEDY
through profit or loss 32 (10)
Loss on disposal property, HEME - KE K
plant and equipment REZEBE - 10
Loss on extinguishment of BEARREITCARLE
promissory notes issued B2 B
by the Company - 289,250
Loss on extinguishment of the BEAEBZBEZERE
Group's borrowings - 196,986
Fair value (gain)/loss on AR ES 2 NFEE
convertible bonds (W), /B8 (403,200) 242,315
Loss on issuance of convertible BITAIMRES 2 BB
bonds - 101,088
(Gain)/loss upon conversion of H R (E 5 2
convertible bonds (lz) /B8 (37,014) 91,855
Impairment loss on FEWER 2 REEE
loan receivables - 6,000
Impairment loss on investment KBRS ZREERE
deposit 15,000 -
Provision for impairment loss on FEUBR R 2
account receivables WA BB RE 1,098 395

The cost of sales includes the amortisation of
intangible assets of approximately HK$423,000
during the year ended 30 June 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

9. INCOME TAX 9. M
(i) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (i) BEBEBRRAZFEBHIE:

profit or loss represents:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET
Current tax BN EA B 1
PRC Enterprise income tax REI RGN 863 S
Deferred tax EEHIE
Current year REE - (106)
Tax credit for the year FEMERE 863 (106)
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been HRAEBERAFELTEREEEZ
made as the Group did not generate any assessable ERBEN A HBAREBMNED
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2017: EHEBE (ZE—tF :TEx) -
HK$Nil).
Subsidiaries located in the PRC are subject to the PRC AR B 2 B B A B ZBHE25% 2 Tl 2 5
enterprise income tax at a rate of 25%. MR ZERTISA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

9. INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

9. FRIEH (&)

(ii) The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to

(i) FARBEREGSBBERETZR

the loss before income tax per the consolidated B BEEERNT:
statement of profit or loss as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BETERATER, (EE) 403,058 (959,922)
Notional tax on loss BEEBBRR RMNEAHE
before income tax, FTE 2 BRATEHA
calculated at rates Bz AERTIE
applicable to profits in the
countries concerned 64,917 (158,387)
Tax effect of expenses not AT 2 R &
deductible for tax purpose 13,256 170,098
Tax effect of income not HARRMS B MBI Z
taxable for tax purpose WAz B E (77,310) (11,817)
Income tax credit and FEMSHEBERR
effective tax rate ERB X
for the year 863 (106)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 10. EENRSAEEB2HNE

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments EEZMe
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Hong RIBEARGHEOI R EMBRRBERCES
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules are as MemT:
follows:
2018 2017
—E-NE  —E %
HKS$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees e 356 360
Basic salaries, allowances and EXE EREMEF
other benefits 1,827 1,707
Retirement scheme contributions RRFTEIEE R 55 63
2,238 2,130
Number of directors BEEAH 10 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d)

The emoluments of directors for the year ended 30 June

10. EENSREBEEB NS (&)

BEx=ME (&)

BHE-_Z-N\FRA=ZTHILFEZES

2018 are set out below: e EF AT
Salary,
allowance Retirement
and other scheme
Name of director EEpE Fees benefits  contributions Total
He 28R BEHE
ik HiEF H®% @i
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAET FAET FET FET
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Pu Haiyong (note (a)) SBEBEE(WiHE) - 18 - 18
Mr. Cai Chun Fai (note (f)) BRI (H2()) - 5 - 5
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing (note (b)) BB L (M b)) - 456 5 461
Mr. Ha Chuen Yeung ElRBRE - 336 17 353
Mr. Lau King Hang ASEEE - 720 18 738
Mr. Mazher Hussain (note (c)) Mazher Hussain’t &
(Hiz#(c)) - 292 15 307
Independent BIkGTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Wong Ting Kon (note (d) BERRE (WHEW) 45 = = 45
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas (note (¢)) FEERE (Mie) 71 = = 7
Ms. Liu Jianyi Bl 120 - - 120
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming MERHLE 120 - - 120
356 1,827 55 2,238
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 10. EERSHREEB2MME (£Z)

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

BExsMe (2)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d)

The emoluments of directors for the year ended 30 June HE_Z—+tHSA=-THLEFECES

144

2017 are set out below: e EF AT
Salary,
allowance Retirement
and other scheme
Name of director BEMA Fees benefits contributions Total
e 2R RIRETE
e H 2 7 fit % Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET AT FET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Ha Chuen Yeung ERBEE - 321 16 337
Mr. Lau King Hang RS - 720 18 738
Dr. Chan Yiu Wing (note (b)) R L (M m) - 456 18 474
Mr. Mazher Hussain (note (c)) Mazher Hussain%t &
(Hit(c)) - 210 11 221
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas FHEERE 120 - - 120
Mr. Tse Yuen Ming HEREE 120 - - 120
Ms. Liu Jianyi ESEEE 120 - - 120
360 1,707 63 2,130
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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A

B % R R M R

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d)

Notes:

(a)

(o)

Mr. Pu Haiyong was appointed as executive director on 20 June
2018.

Dr. Chan Yiu Wing was appointed as executive director from
independent non-executive director on 1 March 2016 and was
reappointed on 24 March 2016.

Mr. Mazher Hussain was appointed as executive director on 19
October 2016 and was resigned on 20 June 2018.

Mr. Wong Ting Kon was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 15 February 2018.

Mr. Lee Ho Yiu, Thomas was resigned on 2 February 2018.

Mr. Cai Chun Fai was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 2 February 2018 and was resigned on 14 February 2018.

The directors held share options under the Company’s

share option schemes. The details of the share options are

disclosed under the paragraph “share option schemes” in

the report of the directors and note 29.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group

to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017:

HK$Nil). There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

Senior management of the Group represents the executive
directors during the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m AR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Individuals with highest emoluments
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the five

individuals of highest emoluments (including directors) are
as follows:

10. EERSHREEB2MME (£Z)

mEHEHAL

TEmeRHENAL (BEES) ZHEE
BT

2018 2017
—®-NE  —T—+%
HKS$000 HK$'000
FETT FET

Basic salaries, allowances and other ~ EZR# & - 285 K E MR R
benefits 2,185 2,493
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET &I R 63 69
2,248 2,562

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five individuals
with highest emoluments as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Individuals with highest emoluments (Cont’d)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include two directors (2017: one)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
individuals (2017: four) during the year are as follows:

10. EENSREBEEB NS (&)

REFMEMAL(E)

FRN AEERLRERSHEANALEER
Z(ZE2—tF —R)EF HBMeER
EX2FNZzATARB - FA - EAER=
F(ZE—tF OB AMALZB S0
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FrET FET

Basic salaries, allowances and EAXEFHe R REMET
other benefits 1,573 1,317
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B3R 53 33
1,626 1,350

The emoluments of the five individuals (2017: five) with
the highest emolument fall within the range from HK$Nil
to HK$1,000,000.

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company
includes a profit of HK$411,033,000 (2017: loss of
HK$959,816,000) which was arrived at before impairment
for the interests in subsidiaries has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m AR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

12. EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE
The calculation of basic and diluted earning/(loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows:

12. 8RERN (B#E)

RATEE AR 2 BRERREEEF
/ (B518) Ty iR B LA F8UREH :

ERHEFAEWT:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of basic FRREHEGREKRZR
earnings/(loss) per share (BR)Z&H,/ (&#8) 402,195 (959,816)
Adjustments: FE
Gain upon conversion of HmAImRES 2 s
convertible bonds (37,014) -
Fair value gain on convertible bonds A2 (E 5 2 A FE Uz (403,200) -
Loss for the purpose of ARFTESREEHE BB
diluted loss per share (38,019) (959,816)
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—LF
‘000 ‘000
FrR Fhg
Weighted average number of ARFTEERERREF,
ordinary shares for the purposes (B 2 EBR
of basic earnings/(loss) per share IEEFEHE (M)
(note) 1,021,620 477,733
Effect of assumed conversion of BREEBRITBRRES 2 TE
convertible bonds 631,328 -
Weighted average number of BREEEREEEE
ordinary shares for the purposes of & & 7 I FHH
diluted loss per share 1,652,948 477,733
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2N

e maRME

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

12.

13.

EARNING/LOSS PER SHARE (Cont’d)

Note:

The denominator used are the same as those detail above for both basis
and diluted earning per share.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share amount is based on the loss for
the year ended 30 June 2017. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is 997,949,099 ordinary shares in issue
during the period, as used in the basic loss per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of 477,733,000 ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The diluted loss per
share amount is decreased when taking the convertible bond into account,
the convertible bond had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share
for the year ended 30 June 2017 and was ignored in the calculation of
diluted loss per share.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provides information about components
of the Group. These information are reported to and
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker ("CODM")
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The Group has the following operating segments during
the year. These segments are managed separately. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

(1) Outdoor advertising on buses and bus stations:
outdoor advertising operations on buses and bus
stations in the PRC

(2) Television advertisements: television advertising

operations in the PRC

(3) Event management services: event management and
market services in HK and PRC

(4) Money lending: Provision of money lending service in
Hong Kong
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13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment loss represents the loss from each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
(e.g. directors” emoluments and finance costs). This is
the measure reported to the CODM, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. Taxation
(credit)/charge is not allocated to reportable segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in @ manner consistent with that in the profit or
loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
unallocated corporate assets. Assets used jointly by
reportable segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual reportable segments; and
all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than borrowings, deferred taxation, convertible bonds,
promissory notes and unallocated liabilities. Liabilities for
which reportable segments are jointly liable are allocated
in proportion to segment assets.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

3. DEER (&)

RGP BRALRRDBZEOEER
AEEETBZLBERRERBUTELER
EERHEDAEE2FE BEMAE:
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REERDBERFERBE2EET N B
H(ER),/ XHTEARETREN -

W kFAX RS2 EZEDMELZHE
BEAXEIREDMEEZEENELHE
WELEZRAXE DETAREDEL-
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MEEEERKE 2RI B AR
HESRR BT AFE

FTEEEADBEERRE DA HEWE—
R B AR 2 RE BRAFEFAR
BZEREERRDEAREERI
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

ivi [ PN IN ==
13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d) 13. 2 BER (£
(a) Business segments (a) ¥BEoHW
Information regarding the Group's reportable FHAREE 2 HEDE 2 EREH
segments set out below: AN
Event management
Outdoor advertising on Television and marketing
buses and bus stations advertisements services Money Lending Total
BiRBLUEIES ERES EHEERTSRRRH B @zt
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-N\f _Z+F ZB-\F ZT-+t% ZB-N\f -_T-+F ZB-NF _T+F ZB-N\f _ZT+F
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS$000
FEx FET FET FET TET TET {Z:23 FEr FET FET
Segment revenue AHBA
Revenue from external customers RENPEEZIMA 28,530 46,785 - - 4373 1,336 369 S 33,272 48,121
Reportable segment loss TREHBRAGHAGE
before income tax (23,855) (3,427) - - 373 (2,077 11 - (233711) (5,504)
Depreciation and FEREH
amortisation (51) 472) - S (29 (14) - = (80) (486)
Reportable segment assets TRENPEE 11,665 11,312 2,247 2,176 5,256 246 6,997 - 26,165 13,734
Reportable segment liabilities RESHERE 44,185 18,790 19,618 18,830 851 165 - = 64,654 37,785
Additions to non-current FROEELNE
assets 12 37 - - - 114 - - 12 151
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 13. DERER (&)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, (b) ARESHBUA -ER BEEREEZ
profit or loss, assets and liabilities # AR
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—LF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Revenue WA
Total reportable Al & o B A A

segment revenues 33,272 48,121
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment loss REAREEINEER 2

derived from Group's Al E D EEE

external customers (23,371) (5,504)
Unallocated other income RoBLEAM A 12,262 10
Finance costs % ER (392) (4,898)
Impairment loss on wEZRE 2 RERE

investment deposit (15,000) -
Extinguishment of repayment of &% X Zi&

promissory notes - (289,250)
Extinguishment of repayment of BEEE

borrowings - (196,986)
Fair value gain/(loss) on AMEEHF 2 AFE

convertible bonds Wi, (E#E) 403,200 (242,315)
Loss on issuance of BT BmRES 2B

convertible bonds - (101,088)
Gain/(loss) upon conversion of IR ARG E A 2

convertible bonds Wz, (E518) 37,014 (91,855)
Unallocated head office and ROMBARREERET

corporate expenses (10,655) (28,036)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BT SR ATER, (EE) 403,058 (959,922)
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 13. D EPER (&)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, (b) ARESHBUA -ER BEEREEZ
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Cont’d) HER (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets A $R&E D 24 E E 26,165 13,734
Deposit paid for acquisition of a WHE—FEHB AR MG 2i&&
subsidiary - 15,000
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABEZEMEE
through profit or loss 21 53
Unallocated corporate assets FAOEABEE 1,274 4,647
Consolidated total assets MEREE 27,460 33,434
Liabilities =
Total reportable segment AmESHBAEEG
liabilities 64,654 37,785
Borrowings (EE 10,500 =
Convertible bonds R &S 118,800 569,990
Unallocated corporate liabilities KB AR EE 7,738 9,885
Consolidated total liabilities mEHEAE 201,692 617,660
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

13. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(c) Geographic information

The Group's operations and workforce are mainly
located in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue from external customers.

3. DEER (&)

() HEESR

AEEZEBRENETBRURTE R
BB

TERHFIAEKERBINEEFL ZWA
DHT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Revenue from external RENEER 2

customers WA

Hong Kong BA 1,240 1,336
The PRC H B 32,032 46,785

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s non-current assets.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHETT

Non-current assets EMEEE
Hong Kong BB 182 386
The PRC Fh 64 87

(d) Information about major customers
For the year ended 30 June 2018, there was no

customer (2017: 1) accounted for over 10% (2017:
13%) of total revenue of the Group.
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d) FEFEFZEHR

BHEZZE—NFAA=ZTRHLEE"
BEER (ZTE—tF:18)hEKE
BUWRZBEEI0%A L (ZE—+EF
13% ) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % -BERFRE
Leasehold Furniture Motor
improvements  and fixtures Equipment vehicles Total
HE
MEHEE BRREE R AE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
COoST D%
At 1 July 2016 RZZE—R"FtA—A 1,474 1,039 25,427 71 28,011
Additions RNE S 30 121 - 151
Disposals HE - = = (48) (48)
Exchange realignment ERAE - (1) (6) S (7)
At30 June 2017 and 1July 2017 R-ZT—tF A=+HEK
—T—+F+A—H 1,474 1,068 25,542 23 28,107
Additions NE = 28 7 - 35
Exchange adjustment EHAE - 4 14 1 19
At 30 June 2018 R=B-N\§XA=+H 1,474 1,100 25,563 24 28,161
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 July 2016 RZE-RE+A—H (1,474) (637) (25,267) (44) (27,422)
Charge for the year FRYH = (194) (56) (6) (256)
Written back on disposal HERER - - - 38 38
Exchange realignment ERACE S - 1 4 1 6
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 —Z—tEXRA=ZTER
—E-tF5+tA—H (1,474) (830) (25,319) (11) (27,634)
Charge for the year FAZH - (185) (75) (6) (266)
Exchange adjustment ek - (4) (1) = (15)
At 30 June 2018 R-ZE-NFXB=1+H (1,474) (1,019 (25,405) (17) 27,915
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NFXA=1H - 81 158 7 246
At 30 June 2017 —tFR A=A - 238 223 12 473
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. BILEE
Patents and Computer
Licenses trademarks software Total
BR  BIREE EREH )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Cost: RA:
As at 1 July 2016, R-B-R"ELtA-A-
30 June 2017, 1 July 2017, and “E-tEXA=TAR:
30 June 2018 “EZ—tE+tA-AR
“E-NEXA=TH 71,085 3,225 74,905 149,215

Accumulated amortisation and Bt EBEREE:

impairment:
At 1 July 2016 R-ZE—~"EtA—H 70,662 3,225 74,905 148,792
Charge for the year FERY 423 - - 423

As at 30 June 2017, 1 July 2017 R-Z-tFXA=+H"

and 30 June 2018 —E—tFtA-AK
“E-N\EXA=+H 71,085 3,225 74,905 149,215
Net book value: BRI FE
As at 30 June 2018 R-E-NEXA=TH - - - -
As at 30 June 2017 RZE—+$<A=TH - - - -
The amortisation for the year is included in “cost of sales” FANHBECBRERNGREEERZ [HEK
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. K]
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

16. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 16. 1B A B 2 515

RZB-NFERA=+H ARAZEE
MEBLRFSEMT:

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30
June 2018 are as follows:

Proportion of voting power
and percentage of equity

REBLARRERI L
Group's Held by Held by  Particulars of Principal activity
Place of effective the the  issued/ and place of
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiary  registered capital operation
KEEZ HALH HHEAE  BRT/ER TEEBR
REER B TEE L BERER b2 BE  RrEf Rens
Jade Phoenix Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - Tordinary share of Investment holding
US$1 each
AERTEE REREEIZETL REER
Lak
Active Link Investments Limited The British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - 10,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding
US$1 each
AERTEE 10,0008 &% REER
AEIXTZEER
Fast Team International Hong Kong 100% 100% - Tordinary share of Investment holding
Investment Limited HK$1 each
ELERRERRAT A \REREEIETL REER
Lak
Super Venus Media Hong Kong 100% - 100% 10,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
International Limited
HeEREERARAR R 10,0008 & @& RARR
REETRRARES The PRC 100% - 100%  Registered capital of Design, production and
BIRRA (note (i) RMB3,000,000 publication of outdoor
advertisements in PRC
ERETRRARES e FMER ERERE BER
BRARE (H) AR #3,000,00070 EBFHES
LREREBERERAA The PRC 100% - 100%  Registered capital of Provision of advertising
(note (i)) RMB5,000,000 placement agency
services in television
channel
TEEERRERERAA mE HHER REBREEN
(HE) AR 5,000,000 EERBRERS
Time Focus The British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - Tordinary share of Investment holding
International Limited US$1 each
ABRUBE 1REREE RAER
1EZTERR
Smart Age Investments Limited The British Virgin Islands 100% 100% - Tordinary share of Investment holding
US$1 each
ABRUEE 1REREE RAER
1EZTERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

16. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 16. B AR 2515 (&

Proportion of voting power
and percentage of equity

REBLHRRERDL
Group's Held by Held by  Particulars of Principal activity
Place of effective the the  issued/ and place of
Name of company incorporation interest Company subsidiary  registered capital operation
KEEZ HARR HHEAR  BRT/ER FTEERR
RAER BT AE L BRER BE B BREEK Rews
\WEEare Sales Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% 1 ordinary share Provision of
event management
and marketing services
BA 1REBR REUEHEERR
M5 R%
ANEBXLEEERAR The PRC 100% - 100%  Registered Capital Provision of marketing
RMB1,000,000 consultancy service
e FMER RETSEERARS
AR#1,000,0007C
ANEEXLEEERAA The PRC 100% - 100%  Registered Capital Provision of marketing
RMB1,000,000 consultancy service
e FMER RETSEERARS
AR#1,000,0007C
ANEEREAABRAA The PRC 100% = 100%  Registered Capital Provision of marketing
RMB2,640,000 consultancy service
e FMER RETSEERARE
AR #2,640,0007C
Note: it -
(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as a limited liability company. V) RIBERBEGIEMBERAF
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company FERAEZINZARAIMBARIRESTRA
which, in the opinion of directors, principally affected the FEVEAREXELEEZRREF
results or assets of the Group. To give the details of other B Z2IHMMBARZFERSRIE
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in BRI

particulars of excessive length.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. RAFEFTAERZEMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—LtF
HKS$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Listed securities: LEWES:
— Equity securities listed —REBEB LT ZBRAEERZS
in Hong Kong 21 53
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are BRATEAAERceREENE2EM
held for trading securities stated at fair values which are BEAREEETZATEZINCHEEER
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices. FEFFo
18. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES 18. FEUW AR X
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Debtors P Uit B X 3,776 3,053
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE R (1,494) (395)
2,282 2,658
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

18. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 18. FEURBRRR (&)

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRER DM

BIERE PARE YRR (FOBR R AR A

(b)

The following set out the ageing analysis of account
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) as of
the end of the reporting period:

) ZBREE DT T

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Current Bl Ef - -
Less than 1 month past due BEAN B —1E A 1,823 =
1 to 3 months past due wmE—=={8A 459 =
Over 3 months past due BHBA=EA - 2,658
2,282 2,658

The Group's trading terms with customers are on
credit. The credit period is generally from nil to 30
days. No interest is charged on account receivables
and the Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Impairment of debtors

Account receivables of approximately HK$1,494,000
were impaired at 30 June 2018 (2017: HK$395,000)
with reference to the subsequent receipts after the
end of the reporting period.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

(b)

AEFBREFZRZUEETAE
T EEHM—RATE3I0R - BUER
RARRE  NEBMENZFERE
BEMRERm-

P Ut Bl Rk 1R

KB2ERBERREE W Z2ZE R
—E-NFRAZ+HEREZEK
BRI %) A1,494,0008 L (Z & —+
4 :395,000/7T) °

W)
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

18. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
(c) Debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of the receivables that are past

due but not impaired, along with receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired, is as follows:

18. FEUBRRR (&)

() MR EZBUYIRR

BHEEREZ BERE UKL E
8 HA TR O (B B MR IR 2 BRIk D AT
LI

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHETT
Past-due but not impaired: i HME R (E

— Less than three months —m LR =18 A
past due 2,282 -
— Over 3 months past due — BB =EA - 2,658
2,282 2,658
Neither past due nor impaired 37 £ i 5 73 & 5 (B = -
2,282 2,658

Included in the Group’s debtors as at 30 June 2018
are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,282,000 (2017: HK$2,658,000)
which are past due but not impaired at the end of
the reporting period, as the directors have assessed
these debtors to be recoverable based on their good
settlement track records with the Group. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Debtors that are neither past due nor impaired related
to customers who have no recent history of default.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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19. LOANS RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

19. EIRER

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

HK$°000 HK$'000

FAETT FE L

Loans receivables (Unsecured) R E K (EEHE) 6,851 =

During the year, the group commenced in the money
lending business.

The total amounts are repayable within one year from the
end of the reporting period. Interest rate on the fixed rate
loans receivables as at 30 June 2018 is at a range of 5%
to 19% per annum.

In determining the impairment of loans receivables from
money lending business, the management considers the
settlements subsequent to maturity of the relevant loans
receivables.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
amounts are recoverable.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

FA AEERRBEES-

=

=

MEEARERRE—FREEZE - RN =
—NERNA=1+H BERETANNREZRZ
FRENF5%FE19% °

RETREXBREER 2RER  EIE

EEZREHEBREERIMR EE-

ARRIESRASBHEEBAAT KD -
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20 ERRE - RERE

RECEIVABLES

il FE W 5K 18

2018 2017
—®-NE  —T—+%F
HKS$000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Prepayments TET IR 5,665 803
Rental and utility deposits ek KEZD 1,390 148
Other deposits HEfiz e 1,681 16,545
Other receivables H b fE Uk ZA 4,441 1,948
13,177 19,444
Non-current portion (Note a) EREE D (Hita) = 15,000
Current portion mE I 13,177 4,444
13,177 19,444
Note: Kt -
(@) As at 30 June 2017, other deposit included an amount of @ RZE—+tFEXRNA=ZTH EizeeiE
HK$15,000,000 which was a refundable deposit paid for a proposed 15,000,000 T2 &5  EARERKENMNE
acquisition of new subsidiary. RAZBERNTRERS -
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

2. BERREEEY

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash at bank and in hand RITNFHBEIRE 4,883 10,806

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group, which are denominated
in Renminbi (“"RMB”), amounted to approximately
HK$3,360,000 (2017: HK$6,999,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through bank
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with
banks ranged from 0.01% to 0.3% per annum (2017:
from 0.01% to 0.35% per annum).

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

RIBEHR AEEBUARE ([ARE])
FHECH e RIRTTAERE R3,360,0008 7T

—ZE—+1%:6,999,000/8 ) - AREET
BRI EMER A RIBEFEA
# CHMNEEIREH) Rk (HE - EERME
EIEMTE)  ANEEAFEBERELE I
EEBCRITBARBE L IBKEMER -

RTINS MBITERZHENTHF0.01
EZ03B(ZZE—+F :HFF001EZE
0.35/F) o
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

22. ACCOUNT PAYABLES, ACCRUED EXPENSES 22. ERHERR - ERAREMENRK
AND OTHER PAYABLES 18
2018 2017
= —\F e
HK$ ‘000 HK$000
FET FET
Account payables (Notes (i) and (i) — FEATERFR (B 2E () (i) ) 32,932 5,920
Accrued expenses and other FEEH B A I H fth fE {5 5B
payables (Note (iii) (B9 &2 i) 11,973 27,523
Receipts in advance TE Uk FRIE 10,245 978
55,150 34,421
Notes: B
(i) The following is an ageing analysis of account payables presented () REZEHZIZEMERRBRSHRZER
based on invoice date as at the end of the reporting period: DT
2018 2017
S —B—t%
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAET
Less than 1 month LR—EA 1,084 =
1 to 3 months —Z=={EA - 5,920
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 11,851 =
6 to 9 months ~ENEA - S
9 to 12 months hNE+ZEA 13,829 -
Over 1 year iR —F 6,168 -
32,932 5,920
(i) The credit period of account payables is generally from nil to 30 days. (i ENERZEEH RN TFETE3I0H-
(i) (1) Included amounts of approximately HK$2,134,720 (2017: iy (1) BEEHETEEMI©EEL2,134,720

HK$10,007,000) related to accrued employee expenses. B (ZZFE—+14:10,007,00087T) °

(2) Included amounts of approximately HK$175,000 (2017: 2 EREEHEENITEZ=HFEEBLH
HK$9,126,000) related to salaries payable to ex-directors. 175,000/ 7T (=& —+ % :9,126,0008
JT) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

23.

24.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement

RAKEF

AEERBEFERBMERE S EGH S
REFBRFEGHERA 2B HETREIME
AR E ([BRESFTE) @B
ERBBETATE Z EBHTRIKE
g HEEREFZEEDFRFA -RIEQ

scheme administered by independent trustees with their BeitE BEXREEEDAEAREESR
assets held separately from those of the employer. Under BUWMAZS% MR B2 —WmF A —AH
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are e gAY A ER%30,000/87T 52l
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% R —EERAGEESRMA -
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income HK$30,000 with effect from 1
June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.
The Group also participates in a state-managed AEENAETEHEELERNREE R
retirement benefit scheme for its PRC employees. The KEFEE - AEET HMZERTEHRK
Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined RREFETEI/E R HEC BRATERRON K
contribution retirement benefit plans and the Group has SEFEEMEE-
no further obligation beyond the contributions made.
BORROWINGS 24. f5 &
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t &
HK$000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
Loans repayable BAR—FREEZER
within one year 10,500 -
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing MEEHELECBBEZHERENT
activities is follows:
2018
—E-N\F
HK$000
FET
As of 1 July 2017  E_T—tF AR -
New bank loan FTIRITEK 11,400
Repayment of bank loan BEERITER (900)
As of 30 June 2018 BE-_ZT—\FRA=TH 10,500

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR
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24.

25.

BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 24. B& (&)
2017
—E—+F
HK$°000
FET
As of 1 July 2016 BHE_T—R"FLH—H 54,756
Fair value of initial recognition of AR E SR Z VIR R
convertible bonds NEEFE (251,742)
(196,986)
Extinguishment on repayment of BEEBE
borrowings 196,986

As of 30 June 2017

During the year ended 30 June 2018, all borrowings
carried fixed rate of interest from 2.5 to 12% per annum.

During the year end 30 June 2017, the Company and
Kuo Yi-Hui, an independent third party, entered into
the second deed of amendment (as supplemented in
September 2016), pursuant to which the Company agreed
with Kuo Yi-Hui, to convert the entire principal amount of
HK$42 million and accrued interests of HK$12.8 million
up to 12 August 2016 into HK$50 million of Convertible
bonds ("CB2"). The issuance of CB2 took place on 7
November 2016.

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 31 August 2012, issued

HK$160,000,000 unsecured redeemable promissory

the Company

notes in connection with the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in the Redgate Ventures Group. The promissory
notes are repayable in one lump sum on maturity of
two years and matured on 30 August 2014. On 29
August 2014, the Company has entered into two deeds
of extension to amend the terms and conditions of
the respective promissory notes with each of the two
noteholders respectively, pursuant to which the parties to
the respective deeds of extension agreed to extend the
maturity date of the promissory notes from 30 August
2014 to 30 November 2014.
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25.

HE_T—tFXXA=1H =

BE T \FRA=THILFE FH
fEEREEFNER25212EF B -

HE-_Z—tFNAZ1+HLEFE &
RAEBYE=ZSTHRERBITLE 0B
FIREBE(BRZZE—R"FLAFER) &
o AAREBHREREBEE2HB AL
42,000,000 T REEZE-_FT—XF/\H
+ =B ZEsHF1£12,800,0007% T ik A
50,000,000/ 7T 2 AJ AR E % ([ A %
BEH2]) - BITAIMREFR2ZNR_-T—RF
+—AtR#EfT-

5 RE

R-TB——ENA=+—8 A7k
#8Redgate Ventureste [ 2 2 ZAE A M a5 -
#17160,000,000/8 7T 2 SR 0] & (B4
ER-EABRBRMERIBEE-RE
BN IBEEA-_ZEZ-—MOENB=+H-
R-ZZE—WENAZ+AB AARED
MEMEREBEREASBR MM IEER
B AMER B AR BB 2 R RAEG &
f SEBEZBZATNTEREBEALE
B Am-_T—mENA=ZTHEE
EZZT—MFE+—A=+H-
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25. PROMISSORY NOTES (Cont’d)

On 28 November 2014, the Company has entered into
two second deeds of extension to further amend the
terms and conditions of the respective promissory notes
with each of the two noteholders respectively, pursuant
to which the parties to the respective second deeds of
extension agreed to further extend the maturity date
of the promissory notes from 30 November 2014 to 27
February 2015.

On 2 April 2015, the Company has entered into a third
deed of extension to further amend the terms and
conditions of the promissory notes with the noteholder,
pursuant to which the parties to the respective second
deeds of extension agreed to further extend the maturity
date of the promissory notes from 27 February 2015 to 31
October 2015.

On 30 September 2015, the Company issued a letter
to Profit Eagle Limited ("“Profit Eagle”), the holder of
the promissory notes and proposed the repayment of
outstanding promissory notes by issuance of convertible
bonds. On 22 October 2015, Profit Eagle principally
agreed the Company’s proposal on the condition that the
Company should issue and allot 180,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company to the holder at the aggregate
consideration of HK$1.00.

On 12 August 2016, the Company and Profit Eagle
entered into the first deed of amendment (the “First
Deed of Amendment”) pursuant to which the Company
agreed with Profit Eagle to exchange the promissory
notes into convertible bonds of an aggregate principal
amount of HK$60,500,000 (“CB1") and to issue 75 million
new ordinary shares for consideration to Profit Eagle
as compensation for the default of payment under the
promissory notes.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR
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25. R R RE (&)

RZE—MNF+—A=Z+N\B x27E
SRERERERBEASBITLMNEZ
RIEBRYE A — BB SHRAERZ
BEREGEE Bl SEZREERZEZ
AN AFEREBREALEBCIHBA-T
—NFE+—A=Zt+HE—FSTCEE_FT
—hAF-A=-++tR-

R-ZE—FAFENA-R  AARIDHERE
BAAGLE=HEERE LU#E—H1B
FIEARER 2GR RGNS Bl 8K
EEREZTHNAEREBERERZE
HAE-—ZE—Thm E-A-t+tRE—FE
BE-_Z—haF+A=+—H-

RZBE—RAFNLA=ZF+H AAFMAER
Z i 7 ¥ 8 AProfit Eagle Limited ([ Profit
Eagle ] ) B — M it WHERBAEITA
BREHFEENREBECARLEZER R
T—h%E+H =+ =8  Profit Eagle XE( A
BEARNBIZEZ GUHRERAGIREARE
1.00/8 7T A A% 1T R ELE 180,000,000
RARB 2 LB -

RZZE—R"FENA+=Z8 K2 A EProfit
Eagler] L & — BRI & ([ — 1 1Ea]
2B Ei - AR AR E EProfit Eagle
AR ERH R A S #%/R60,500,000
BTz AR ES ([AIRES1]) A
Profit Eagle®7775,000,0000% 7 & & A% LA
BMEREEARLEBETINENZE

f&-
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25. PROMISSORY NOTES (Cont’d) 25. R EE (&)

On 19 September 2016, the Company and Profit Eagle
entered into a supplemental deed to the First Deed of
Amendment (the “Supplemental Deed”). Pursuant to
the Supplemental Deed, (i) the Company and Profit
Eagle agreed to change the terms that the Company
shall at completion of the issuance of CB1 issue and
allot 75,000,000 new ordinary shares (the “Subscription
Shares”) to Profit Eagle or its nominee at the subscription
price of HK$0.01 per Subscription Share (the “Subscription
Price”) (which is equivalent to the par value of the new
share) and (ii) Profit Eagle has to obtain prior written
consent of the Company if any of the nominee(s),
transferee(s) or assignee(s) (and their respective ultimate
beneficial owners) who take(s) up the Subscription Shares
is a connected person of the Company. The Company
intended to use the net proceeds from the Subscription
Shares of approximately HK$750,000 for its general
working capital. The issuance of CB1 and Subscription
Shares took place on 7 November 2016.

RZZE—R"FNA+IB KRB EProfit
Eagled]l Y & — MBI RBE 2B T LE
([RRE]) -REFBAREZE VAR F
HiProfit EagleRBEET ARG BIAR
AR BITAIRARESH 1R B IEREE
FlRERM.OVET ([REE]) (AE
RETIR D < E &) 817 & B 375,000,000
BT E @Ak ([REEAR(D ) T Profit Eaglesk
HRBARGMHEABREBRS 2 EARE
A EBAXZZA (REESEEBZ&EKE
m#AEAN)BARA ZEEA L AlProfit
Fagle ERSARRIZEXREARE AR
A SR B AR 10 BT 1S 3B F 88 49750,0005%8
TRARE—REEES - BT RRER
LREBRHERZZE—R"F+—HAtRH#E
e

2018 2017

ZE-N\F —E—+F

HK$000 HK$°000

FHET FET

At the beginning of the year REH - 50,000

Interest charged MERX S -
Fair value of initial recognition of AR E R 2 R ER

convertible bonds (note) NEE () - (302,500)

Fair value of subscription share RERMND 2 AFE - (36,750)

- (289,250)

Extinguishment of promissory notes & {E7# X Zi& - 289,250

At the end of the year

Note:

Convertible bond (CB1) issued by the company with the fair value of
HK$302,500,000 at note 26 is used for repayment of promissory notes
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26.

ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS BY
THE COMPANY AND EXTINGUISHMENT OF
CERTAIN LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY

On 7 November 2016, the Company issued the following
convertible bonds as a part of financial restructuring
described in the Company’s circular dated 23 September
2016. Please refer to notes 24 & 25 for details.

Convertible bond 1 (“CB 1”)

The Company issued zero-coupon convertible bonds
with the principal amount of HK$60,500,000 to Profit
Eagle Limited, the holder of promissory note with the
aggregate carrying amount of HK$50,000,000, as part of
the consideration to settle the promissory note that had
been due for payment since 31 October 2015.The maturity
date of CB 1 will be on the day last preceding the second
anniversary of the date of the issue of the CB 1, i.e. 6
November 2018.

Convertible bond 2 (“CB 2")

The Company issued 3% convertible bonds with the
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 to Miss Kuo Yi-
Hui, an independent third party and one of the Group’s
creditors, to settle a Group’s borrowing of HK$42,000,000
with interest of 2.5% per month. The carrying amount
of the borrowing together with the accrued interest
amounted to HK$54,756,000. The maturity date of CB 2
will be on the day last preceding the 18th month of the
date of the issue of the CB 2, i.e. 6 May 2018. Interest is
payable per annum.

Convertible bond 3 (“CB 3")

The Company issued 3% convertible bonds with the
principal amount of HK$25,000,000 to not less than
6 independent third parties for cash consideration of
HK$25,000,000. The maturity date of CB 3 will be on the
day last preceding the second anniversary of the date of
the issue of the CB 1,
payable per annum.

i.e. 6 November 2018. Interest is

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

6. AREBRTABMBRESKBFEARR

AETARE

Ro-B—AF+—ALB ARARTH
TARBESEARATBRAR=E A
FNA=+=RBEAATFER Y 5
5 o B B BN 2425 -

R EFI([TRRERESR1])

X2 &) (Al Profit Eagle Limited ( A#2 B (A
50,000,000/ T 2 A& W BB A A) #1T
N4 %8 560,500,0008 L 2 TE SR R
BEHF ERENBZZE—RAFTA=+T—
HREIHASH AL BB 2 BIRE -
ARBEFIBRETIBRERER1ZA
HEstE - BAFHI—RA (I ZE—N\F
+—A/XB)EH-

AR ESR2([TRRKRESH2])

ARRABHRBELL (BBILE=ZFRAK
B E#A)EITA S A50,000,000
BILZ3% AR ES  UENAERA L
2.5F 2 542,000,000/ L £ E 2 BRM
BEE[R A F 8 A54,756,0007% JT ° A #

P& 721N BT AT AR B 552 2 B HTHE R
E+/EAM—B (- NFHAR

BB MBARFEXN -

AR ESI([ATRKRES3])

RRARMADPRAEBILE=ZFEITAS
#6/325,000,000/ 7T, 23% Al iR &% - IR
& {8 425,000,000 JT - o] # A% 1 5345
REITAIHARES 1 2 BB SE AT A
AI—A (AZE—-N\F+—H/XA)EH-
MEBERFELZ o
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26.

ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS BY
THE COMPANY AND EXTINGUISHMENT OF
CERTAIN LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)

All of the abovementioned convertible bonds were issued
soon after the share consolidation. All convertible bonds
entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
convertible bonds and their maturity date at a conversion
price of HK$0.1 per share, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments and the conversion restriction under Rule 26
of the Hong Kong Code of Takeovers and Mergers. If the
convertible bonds have not been converted, they will be
redeemed on their respective maturity date at the principal
amount outstanding plus accrued interest. The Company
shall have the right at any time between the date of issue
of the convertible bonds but prior to their respective
maturity date to redeem the whole or any principal
amount of the convertible bonds outstanding at 100% of
the principal amount thereof with the accrued interest (the
“Early Redemption Option”).

The Early Redemption Option embedded in all convertible
bonds was not considered by management as closely
related to the host liability component of the convertible
bonds and hence the conversion options embedded in
the convertible bonds do not meet the requirement as to
“fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of shares of the
Company’s equity instruments and are not classified as
equity instruments. Instead, the conversion options and
Early Redemption Options are considered as embedded
derivatives. With embedded derivatives, management
decided to designate the convertible bonds as financial
liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At the issuance date of those convertible
bonds, the fair value of CB 1, CB 2 and CB 3 were
approximately HK$302,500,000, HK$251,743,000 and
HK$126,088,000 respectively.
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AETEaE (&)

PrE L AT E 5 IR IR & HHE T A
BT AN BRBREFOE THAEARS
RAMMERESETHREETEA IEHHE
R IR MR EERONETHEER AR
Al EAR EAXFRBRRKE LA G
57 RIAR BI268 T 2 [ #5858 B N B R R
PRARER o M A AR B S R EE % QIR E
BREZB BB AREREERSEM
FEET A 25 B [0 o AKX RS A R A AT HR AR
HFRITABERKRESE A 2B WA AL
[ BRI B RS 88 2 100% & R FE 51 71 2
BB R EE 2 AT E 7 2 2B E
AeR@([EREEE]) -

HREEERRMEATRRESRANR
FEOETEEZEITRRESZCEER
B D =R - AT RRES R AR
REXTIAFEBEReSELBARR
BRABTEHE RGN 2HE BXRHEE
IR o MBI - #a i K 4R BB Bl RE A AR iR
ARXTTETIR -RYILHRE BEEBR
ERBRAXTET A2 BRES
EREAFEFABENSREE -NZ
EU|REFEITHE  TBRRES A
BREF2 R AR EFIN A FED HE
£302,500,0005% T ~ 251,743,0007 7T &
126,088,000 T °
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26. ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS BY
THE COMPANY AND EXTINGUISHMENT OF
CERTAIN LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)

Upon the initial recognition, the Group has recognised
losses attributable to the following:

Loss on extinguishment of the abovementioned
promissory notes issued by the Company amounting
to approximately HK$289,250,000. The consideration
for the extinguishment was satisfied by a) issuance
of 75,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company for
a cash consideration of HK$750,000 and issuance
of CB 1 of principal amount of HK$60,500,000. As
mentioned in the Group’s accounting policy note, the
difference between carrying amount of a financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid,
measured in this case based on the fair values of the
ordinary shares (less consideration received) and CB 1
issued, is recognised in profit or loss;

Loss on extinguishment of the abovementioned
borrowing amounting to approximately
HK$196,986,000. The consideration for the
extinguishment was satisfied by the issuance of
CB 2 of principal amount of HK$50,000,000. The
difference between carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid,
measured based on the fair value of CB 2 issued, is
recognised in profit or loss; and

Loss on initial recognition of CB 3, amounting to
HK$101,088,000, attributable to the fact that the
fair value of CB 3 determined on initial recognition
is significantly higher than the cash consideration
received.
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26. ARBBRTHBBREZRBFEARR

3

ETRE (&)

MPERIE AEBECDHERATSEEN
B

BEARRRET EMESEEZE
18 5#9289,250,000/87C > BB 2 A (B
J53%5 B a)¥ 1775,000,000% 48 A 7 &
Ak (BFIR 2R E750,0008 7T) &
17N © %8 560,500,000/ T 2 Al 2
BAEF 1T o AL B e BERW
HA - BUEBERZERBERER
HENREZEZE (RILBRTIRE
L@ AFE CRERARE) KB %
TABRESR1 2 AFEFE) R EZE
R

BE LA EEZEBERE ALY
196,986,000/ 7L < /B E 2 RETHE B
{7/ € %8 550,000,000 T 2 Al #2
BEF2I M -BEER B E Y
FHEHEENRE (REBED TR
REF22 A TFEANE) 2EZENER
PR R

MPHERABLRKRESFIZEER
101,088,000/ 7T * Jh R ¥] iR s
FEEARBRESFIZATFERES
REYHReREBMR-
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26.

ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS BY
THE COMPANY AND EXTINGUISHMENT OF
CERTAIN LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)

The losses arising on extinguishment and initial recognition
referred to above were mainly due to the fact that a
significant value of the convertible bonds as at initial
recognition was attributable to the conversion option
embedded in the convertible bonds that entitle the holders
to convert into ordinary shares of the Company at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.1 per conversion share,
which is at a significant discount to the fair value of the
share of HK$0.5 on initial recognition of the convertible
bonds. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the initial conversion price should not be adjusted for
the share consolidation of every five issued and unissued
shares into one share which took place on 4 November
2016 as disclosed in Note 29.

The movements of CB 1, CB 2 and CB 3 during the year
are set out below:

26.

ARABBTARRESFRBEAR
AETEE (&)

ALiBERPERELEZERIIEE
HRABRRESRI S ERE 2 EAEE
RN AR ES AR 2 A
TRA AN AR Y] 5 B E B BRI AR
0. 178 7T (AR A B E SR 1) S R
ZB R FEO.SETTA KB ) K
AABEBR - ARBEERR NTH]
BRETEAR T —RF+—AOBAET
ZEBRABREBETERBETROEHAS K
Wt 2 BAn & 6F (AP EE29PT X 58 ) 1E L 38

B o
=

ABRER - RRE R R AT R E S
3SFREHEIWT

CB1 CB2 (B3 Total
ARBRES ARRES2 TRRES3 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
At 1 July 2016 R-B-~E+A-A . - - -
Issued during the year FRET 302,500 251,743 126,088 630,331
Converted during the year FRBH - (280,175) (163,664) (443,839)
Interest paid ERFIE - (421) (251) (672)
Fair value remesurement: EFGFEATE:
— on conversion —RER s 54,028 37,827 91,855
- at the end of the reporting period - RBEHR 223,850 18,465 = 242,315
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 RZE—tF A=Z+HRK
—Z—tFtA—H 526,350 43,640 - 569,990
Converted during the year FRBH (900) (9,900) - (10,800)
Interest paid BERHE - (176) S (176)
Fair value remeasurement: EFGEATE:
— on conversion —RER (3,450) (33,564) = (37,014)
- at the end of the reporting period - RBEHR (403,200) - - (403,200
At 30 June 2018 R-ZZ-N\EXA=+H 118,800 - - 118,800
Analysed for reporting purposes as: NHREREMZANET
— Current portion kb 118,800 = = -
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26. ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS BY

THE COMPANY AND EXTINGUISHMENT OF
CERTAIN LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the original holder
of CB 2, Miss Kuo Yi-Hui, transferred the aggregate
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to 2 parties
considered by management to be independent third
parties of the Company or the Group. After the transfers,
Miss Kuo Yi-Hui and the other transferees converted the
aggregate principal amount of HK$25,000,000 of CB 2
into the ordinary shares of the Company. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, such conversions did not
trigger Rule 11.23(7) of the GEM Listing Rules and Rule 26
of the Hong Kong Code of Takeovers and Mergers.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, profit of
HK$37,014,000 and HK$403,500,000 (2017:
HK$91,855,000 and HK$242,315,000) respectively were
recognised in profit or loss attributable to fair value
remeasurement of certain convertible bonds on conversion
and fair value measurement of outstanding convertible
bonds at the end of the reporting period.
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26. ARBBRTHBBREZRBFEARR

AETEaE (&)
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26. ISSUANCE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS BY
THE COMPANY AND EXTINGUISHMENT OF
CERTAIN LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)

The fair values of the convertible bonds at initial
recognition, at the time of conversion and as at 30 June
2017 and 2018 were estimated using binominal option
pricing model with the following inputs:

26. ARBBRTHABBRESZRFELRR
AETEaE (&)

AMREFNIITER REIBREEER
—E+tERTE-NFARA=ZTHOR
FEDDRB -_EAHECEEREX TG

ANBBETIAET:
At the
At 30 June At 30 June issuance
2018 2017 date
R-ZB-N\E RZE—+t&
AB=+H ANA=TH RETAE

Stock price RIE
Conversion price #iE
Risk-free rate mE SR E
Dividend yield ey 6
Time to maturity B HER
Volatility K 1&

The above inputs used in computing the fair value of
the convertible bonds were based on the directors’ best
estimate. Changes in input may result in changes in the
fair value of the convertible bonds.
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1.524% 0.54% to £ 0.54% to &
0.66% 0.60%

0% 0% 0%
0.4years F 09t0 & 1510 %
1.4 years 2 years

45.09% 32.23% 32.16%
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

27.

i SE T TR

RAFE  ERGEAEVHRNKRER 2R
ERBRBEZAEXE D REBIWT

Intangible

assets

B EE

HK$'000

FET

At 1 July 2016 RZE—RFLH—H 106

Credited to profit or loss sFAE R (106)
At 30 June 2017 and R-ZE—+tF

30 June 2018 ~NA=tHRK

—E-NFXA=1H

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$47,880,000 (2017:
HK$47,880,000) available to offset against future profits
that may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax
assets has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect

of the remaining tax losses of the Company due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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RBEBRR ANEEBZ2RBAHREES
1B A #47,880,0008 L (ZF —tF:
47,880,000/ 7T ) + ] A3 LASK §5 A 4 PR A
87 R B o /B AR TE B R AR 7
IR M MR IBEERRELERIEE
Eo

A 7 A DK FEURI R B0 M SRR - 83 S B AR
RAZHBTHABRERETCHAEE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. [
Par value of Number Nominal
each share of share value
SREE RASE [ ED
HK$ HK$000
BT FET
Authorised: EE:
1 July 2016, 30 June 2017 and RZE-R"FtHA-A"
1 July 2017 ZE—t+ERAZTAER
—T—t+tFtA-H 0.1 3,000,000,000 300,000
Share consolidated (Note (a)) AR & B (H1it ) (2,400,000,000) =
Share sub-division (Note (a)) AR R 48 (H1i2(a)) 29,400,000,000 =
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NEXA=1H 0.01 30,000,000,000 300,000
Par value of Number Nominal
each share of shares value
SREE RAEE HE
HKS HK$'000
BT FHET
Issued and fully paid BRITRBRE
At 1 July 2016 R-_Z—-"EtHA—H 191,099,228 95,550
Capital reduction (Note (a)) BB (fit(a) = (93,639)
Issue of subscription shares (Note (b))  Z1TRBRD (#5#(b)) 0.01 75,000,000 750
Placing of shares (Note (c)) EERD (M) 0.01 31,849,871 318
Issue of shares upon conversion of KRBTSR ERBETRR
convertible bonds (Note (d) (Hiit(a) 0.01 700,000,000 7,000
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 RZZE-tFEXA=ZTHRK
—E—tF&tA-H 0.01 997,949,099 9,979
Issue of share upon conversion of RERTRRESRHETRR
convertible bonds (Note (e)) (Hiitte)) 55,000,000 550
1,052,949,099 10,529
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 17 October 2016, the Company
proceed with capital reorganisation involving, among others, the
following:

(i) share consolidation whereby every five issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.1 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.50 each;

(i) capital reduction whereby the nominal value of all the issued
consolidated shares was reduced from HK$0.50 each to
HK$0.01 each by cancelling paid-up capital to the extent of
HK$0.49 on each issued consolidated share so as to form the
adjusted Share of HK$0.01 each; and

(iii)  the sub-division was made of each of the authorised but
unissued consolidated shares of HK$0.5 each into 50 adjusted
shares of HK$0.01 each.

The capital reorganisation was taken place and completed on 4
November 2016.

On 12 August 2016, the Company entered into supplemental
deed to the First Deed of Amendment to amend the terms on
the allotment of 75,000,000 subscription shares at a price of
HK$0.01 per subscription share. The net proceed received from
the subscription was HK$750,000. As the Group's accounting
policy notes, the measured in this case based on the fair values of
the ordinary shares less consideration received. The placing was
completed on 7 November 2016.

On 18 November 2016, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with placing agent to placing to not less than six
independent placees for up to 31,849,871 shares at a price of
HK$0.35 per placing share. The net proceed received from the
placing was HK$10.60 million. The placing was completed on 30
November 2016.

On 13 February 2017, 27 February 2017, 7 March 2017 and 8 March
2017, the Company issued 700,000,000 new ordinary shares at an
issue price of HK$0.1 each for redemption of outstanding convertible
notes respectively. The excess over the par value of the shares issued
was credited to the share premium of the Company.

On 11 January 2018 and 13 June 2018, the Company issued
50,000,000 and 5,000,000 new ordinary shares at an issue price
of HK$0.1 each for redemption of outstanding convertible notes
respectively. The excess over the par value of the shares issued was
credited to the share premium of the Company.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED E&I1ZR AR A 7

28. BRA& (&)

Brat -

(a)

(d)

BRERRER-_ZF-R"E+A+LARITZR
RERAE LBB —ARRARR  ARE#
TER(ERBE)NTRBEZRASE:

iy Bmaest Bt SEREREECIET
ZEBEORABTROHEHA—RERE
BH0.50/8 T2 & HFRRD

(i)  BRAHR G HU - EBEHBRRA(E
BB EITEGRMNEH0A9ET)HMA
BRI AR 2 EEHSR0.508 TTH
HEBROOIETUASEFERN AER
0.0187T: &

(i) HEREREERFTZEREESE
TLZ A D 2 4 R 508 AL E (50.01)8
TR BR

BRAEHER_T-—A"F+-AWAETRTE
B o

RZZE—RNENA+ZB KRR ILE—HE
AIREZHAREBEUETIRERRBERK0.01
I Z (B EBL75,000,0000% R 1D Z 165K
B 3R 88 Y EN 2 P15 3018 )% 58 A750,00008 7T ©
WMALBEE BRI BB R TR T @A
ZRAFEBEBRREFAE - BREER=ZZ—XF
+—AtB=K-

RZZ—XRE+—A+N\B ARFREERRE
BT B E e AR S IR AL E IR 15 0.358 T 2 Bi%
MR DR AN B B AL AR E&%31,849,871%
B 15 - B B & URER 2 BT 1S 5k 18 7F %8 /510,600,000
B BEEERZTE—A"F+—A=+HEHZ=EK-

R—_TE—+&_A+=ZH - —T—+&_A
—t+tRA ZE—tEF=AEARZTE—tF=
ANB AR R S RIRETESR B THET
700,000,000 51 & i A% LA B [B] K X, 12 Al AR 22
B-BUEBITRMEEZEEETALQTZ
A& 15 V5 (B A

R-B-NE-A+-AR=F-NEXA
t=A ARARRBTEEROIBTHBIH
#750,000,0000% %2 5,000,000/% ¥ i i i A f& ]
RABTRRER - BHEXTROAGEL 2
BEAKRAZ B EA -
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 July
2002 whereby any employees (whether or not full-time or
part-time) and any consultant or adviser who, at the sole
discretion of the board, subject to the terms of the share
option scheme, contributed to the Group, may be granted
options to subscribe for shares in the Company. The share
option scheme was terminated and a new share option
scheme was adopted pursuant to resolution passed by the
Shareholders on 23 November 2012.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the schemes must not
exceed 10% of the total numbers of shares in issue.

9. BB IR

ARNBR _EE-_FLARABHEM—IAE
TS B EREE (Em2Bsik
B MERE AR SRR (EBREE
ZERT HEEE2RENBERAE AL
BEMERME) G UTERBERENRER
NAIRG - KRRIE K IFEERERTE - WAR
ERER_ZE——F+—A=-+=ARAB
ZRFR RN —TETERAEE

RIBZ S BRI RER 2 BB MR
NEE RZTHREACBITRNDAHZ
10% o

Number of shares
RHEE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat1July Granted during Exercised during  Lapsed during as 30 June Exercise price
Date of grant 2017 the year the year the year 2018 Option period per share
(Note)
RZ%-t§ RZE-NE
tA-A ARZTH
REBH HATE ERRE ERAR EREX HATE ERERE BRAORE
Former directors, senior management, 23 August 2007 2,250 - - (2,250) - 23 August 2007 to HK$19,538.8
other employees and consultants 22 August 2017
HEF RRERE ABERREN —TRLFNA=TZH Z2RLENAZTIRE 19,538.8% 7
Z§-tENBZtZR
9 September 2008 995 - - - 995 9 September 2008 to HK$5,396.95
8 September 2018
ZEEN\ENANE “EENEARNRE 5,396.95% 7
“§-NEABNR
11 September 2008 709 - - - 709 11 September 2008 to HKS6,047.3
11 September 2018
ZZRNERAT-B Z2RNERAT-HE 604737
Z2-NFAAT-R
16 December 2008 709 - - - 709 16 December 2008 to HK$2,363.5
15 December 2018
ZERNETZATAR Z2RNETZATARE 23635% 7
Z2-N\FtZATER
17 February 2009 386 - - - 386 17 February 2009 to HK$3,070.9
16 February 2019
ZEEAFZATER ZRRAFCATLEE 3000987
ZE-RECATAA
29 May 2009 386 - - - 386 29 May 2009 to HKS2,728.6
28 May 2019
ZERAFEAZTAR Z2RAFEAZTARE 218637
“E-AFEACTNR
31 December 2009 20 - - - 220 31 December 2009 HK$1,395.3
to 29 December 2019
ZERAETZR=T-H ZRENETZAST-HE 1395387
It 253 g
15 January 2010 1,935 - - - 1,935 15 January 2010 to HK$2,264.05
14 January 2021
“2-Z5-A+EA Z%3-3F-AtEHE 22640557
ZE=-5-AtRH
7,590 = = (2,250) 5,340

Annual Report 17/18 ¥ 17/18

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED E AR AR AR

179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR
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|~ A ==
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d) 29. BBIRFESTEI (&)
For the year ended 30 June 2017 HE_Z—tFA=1+THLFE
Number of share options
EREzA
Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Completion as at Exercise
asat during the during the during the at share 30 June price
Date of grant 1 July 2016 year year year reorganisation 2017 Option period per share
(Note) (Note)
RIZ-7E RIZ-t§
tA-H RERH AAZtA
RAE HATTE ERRH ERfif EREH i@ﬁ%@ HATE  BRESR
Former directors, 23 August 2007 1,25 - - - (9,002) 2,250 23 August 2007 to HK$19,538.8
senior management, 22 August 2018
other employees and ZETHFNRZT=R ZRRtENAZTZRE 195388470
consultants ZE-\FNAZ1ZH
Mg RAERE: 9 September 2008 4,975 - - - (3980) 995 9 September 2008 to HKS5,396.95
HbEER tember 2018
BH “ZRN\ERANA \ENANAE 5399587
“5-\FhANR
11 September 2008 3,546 - - - (2,837) 709 11 September 2008 to HK$6,047.3
10 September 2018
“2RNERAT-B “ERNENAT-BE 6,047.3%7
—2-\EAATH
16 December 2008 3,546 - - - (2,837) 709 16 December 2008 to HK$2,363.5
15 December 2018
“2RNE+ZATAR “RRNET-RTARE 2363587
—B-\F+-ATIA
17 February 2009 1,932 - - - (1,546) 386 17 February 2009 to HK$3,070.9
16 February 2019
“ZRAFCRTLA “ETAECATtRE 30109% 7
“AEZBTAR
29 May 2009 1,932 = = = (1,546) 386 29 May 2009 to HK$2,728.6

28 May 2019
SEAERR-TARE 2128657

“2ENFIACTAR

31 December 2009 1,104 - - - (884) 220 31 December 2009 to HK$1,395.3

30 December 2019
Z2RAEH=AZH-R FERELA

-BE  13953%%

ZE-RET
15 January 2010 9,675 = = = (7,740) 1935 15 January 2010 1o HK$2,264.05
14 January 2020
ZZ-ZF-AtaR z -At1AZ 22640557
£-A+MA
Total 37,962 = = = (30372) 7,590
Eh
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

The fair values of the options granted on 23 August
2007, 9 September 2008, 11 September 2008, 16
December 2008, 17 February 2009 and 29 May 2009
determined using the Binominal Option Pricing Model
were HK$32,590,077, HK$13,654,408, HK$5,868,400,
HK$4,093,100, HK$1,071,600 and HK$948,000
respectively.

The fair values of the options granted on 31 December
2009 and 15 January 2010 determined using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model were HK$5,495,000 and
HK$3,255,000 respectively. The significant inputs and
assumptions to the model were as follows:

CBRERTE (&)

RZEZELFNAZF=H ZFZTNF
NARBE ZEZENFNA+—H =
NE+Z_A+ARB ZBEAFE_A++
R-EBERAERAA-THABBELEZEBR
Bz ATEDNEA_BEABECEREAE
F 9 Al /A32,590,0777 7T~ 13,654,408
7 7T~ 5,868,400/ 7T~ 4,093,100 7T »
1,071,600/% 7T 5&948,000/% T °

RZZFEENF+ZA=FT—RHKZE—F

F-A+HARE 2 EREZ ATETE
AR n -SSR EERNEE 2
7l £5,495,000/% JT }&3,255,0007%8 It ° #%
BRAZEZHAHBBERBHREOT

23 August 9 September 11 September 16 December 17 February 29May 31 December 15 January

2007 2008 2008 2008 2009 2009 2009 2010

It & 242 ZEENE “EINE RENE It k2 ZRENE It 2 k2 “%-%F

Grant date REAH NA=t=H AARE AAT-B fZAtAR ZAttR  EAC-tAB tZAZt-B -ATEA
Stock assets price (unadjusted) ROBEER (REER) HK$0.63 HK$0.174 HK$0.195 HK$0.075 HK$0.099 HK$0.087 HK$0.23 HK$0.37
06357 0.174% 7 0.19557 0.075% 7 0.099% 7 0.087T%7T 0.3%7 0374

Exercise price (unadjusted) AR (REE%) HK$0.063 HKS0.174 HKS0.195  HKS0.0762 HK$0.099 HKS0.088 HK$0.225 HKS0.365
0.063% 7 0.174%7 0.195% T 0.0762% T 0.099%7 0.088% T 0.205%7 0.365% T

Expected volatility BHRE 71.37% 95.077% 95.255% 100.409% 102.323% 102.323% 96.04% 97.35%
Expected life EHEH 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
10§ 10% 10§ 105 10§ 10% 10§ 0%

Risk free interest rate EEREX 4.480% 2.848% 2.799% 1.530% 1.586% 2.767% 1.93% 1.86%
Expected dividend yield L 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Expected volatility was based on weekly historical volatility
since the establishment of the Company.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model and the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model require the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the volatility of share price. Any
changes in subjective input assumptions could materially

affect the fair value estimate.

Note:

The numbers of share options and the exercise price per share options
were adjusted upon the completion of the share consolidation on
4 November 2016.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

30. RESERVES

The

amounts of the Group's reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve are governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
("Companies Act”).

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 3(n)(ii).

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to
obtaining a listing, the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 5 July 2002. The excess
of the consolidated net assets represented by the
shares acquired over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange under the
group reorganisation was transferred to contribute
surplus. Contributed surplus also includes the credit
arising from the capital reorganisations effective on 9
December 2010 and 28 June 2011 respectively.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of the Group’s foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3(y).

Distributable of reserves

At 30 June 2018, no reserve was available for
distribution as dividends to shareholders of the
Company (2017: HK$Nil).
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30. f#1E

AEBZREEIRESSHECRNEARER
H2ERARRGEBEEHRIR -

REHERAR
() REOEERKIBEGFE

AR GEERIRABRRER R
RE-NN—FRE(NREE]D

FAOFEE -

(i) BREZE

B P A 158 85 PR AR BB RE3(n) (i) BE A B
D RER 2 X HERM 2 G5 BRI
RZBETAEBRE ZER MR
TTEBRERE RAFEEMNK-

(iii) A & &

RELTAZEEER XRFANZ
EE_FHARAMRAEEZER
RAARBRBEBSAMMKER
EBHRESBAETRN ZEE
ZRABEEFRESRE CEEBAR
BR-BABKRNTEBHEEDHIN=-F—
E2FE+_ANRBR-ZZF——FRXH
T N\BERZRAERAERHE
B o

(iv) EZ#FE
R FEmmREARE 2 BINERY
BRRMEEZMEELZRHEAEMN -
RN E(AEZ 5T BRE
e

(v) THRDIREE
RZZE-NFRA=1TH HERHE
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— LT B ¢
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

31.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, raise new debt financing, or sell assets to
reduce debt. No changes were made in the objective and
processes during the year of 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio. The
Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable
level.

The Group'’s gearing ratios at 30 June 2018 and 30 June
2017 were as follows:

3. EXERER

AEEERRERN BEAKEEESH
BREEAERELE YEBBLABKR
ARG RSB AR RRALE A
SECZERBRREBEFEAREST

=

REETBEERERE UHEBEMRR 2 E
BREHEECRRERELHAE B
RAABREARE AEEHSHEMR
RIRMIRE 258 - MIRERRERA - 31T
R BEFEERESHEEELR
BEB - R_Z—N\EFER_T—+F B
K F2 7 3 4% (] B B o

AEEEREERERRERELR KK
BIBRREFEERBLERNAEXK

o

AEBR_ZT-N\FRA=TEE_-Z
—tFERNAZtTBEZEERBLRNT:

2018 2017

—E-N\E —F—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Debt (Note (i) &% (B1aE0) 129,300 569,990
Cash and cash equivalents BeBREEEY (3,790) (10,806)
Net debt (B 125,510 559,184
Equity (note (ii)) AR HE (B AL (i) (174,232) (584,226)
Net debt to equity ratio B F R R AL & N/A i H N/A 73 F

Notes:

(i) Debt comprises borrowings and convertible bonds.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to the owners of
the Company.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. #@T A
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods FRSESREERSRABGB ETEGH
adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of BER BTN E (BIEERGENG FTEE
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses ERERKE 2 L) 2 FIERBERW T
are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets 3o

and financial liabilities are disclosed in note 3.

Categories of financial instruments SRMIAER
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Fair value through profit or loss BRAVEFARR 21 53
Loans and receivables B & EWRIE
(including cash and (BEHE2 K
cash equivalents) BeEEY) 14,698 32,104
Financial liabilities Gl =R
Fair value through profit or loss BAFEEABR 118,800 569,990
Amortised cost BEK AR 65,650 34,421
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERBREEBERBE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial AEEREEIHEE BV BAR B8
risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, equity price risk, EAREK  RBESERK RERK - INE
foreign currency risk and cash flow interest rates risk. The RREBeRENEERER AEE 228
Group’s overall risk management programme seeks to Rl E RS KIGRA Y AR BE
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial BRERAETERZRE BRHIWAT -

performance and are set out below.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest-
bearing borrowings. Other borrowings disclosed
in note 24 carry at fixed interest rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group did
not enter into interest rate swap to hedge against its
exposures to changes in fair values of the borrowings.

The Group consider that there is no significant cash
flow interest rate risk as the Group and the Company
do not have variable-rate borrowings.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Liquidity risk

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and going
concern of the Group in light of the Group had
consolidated net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$174,478,000 and HK$174,232,000
as at 30 June 2018. Nevertheless, the directors of the
Company implemented secured measured to improve
the liquidity position of the Company as detailed in
note 3(b) to the financial statements. The directors of
the Company are satisfied that the Group has so far
meet all the financial obligations as and when they
fall due and will consider to raise fund by ways of
issuing debt and equity instruments of the Group or
to obtain adequate committed lines of funding from
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in future.
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(a) FIEmEE

AEE A EEBRFEEHEEE R
Bl M R A B2 A A (R M RE24
W) S AR EERATEN RS -
K 55 (3 4 BT 7 S B R - A 3 e
EAFEEHZ AR

AEERS BARANEERARRL
BEIPNXEE AUBEERRS
MEN R -

AEBHR BB ENRER  7F
ARAMERDESEAREE -

(b)) HEEZER

BREEVBRERE EXAEE
RZE-—NFRNAZ=ZTHEBE
ENBEBEEFERAGFENR
174,478,000/ 7T &% 174,232,000/%
T ARFIEZFCEREREAEEZ
RRTRHERIFELEE N -EE
it AR R EEE MRS HE AR
ERNAIZRBESHR (FBRY
BEWKRMFE3(D0)) c RAFEZEHAR
SEZSRIEFENMBINBE M
B UHEBANETAEEES R
BATEZFXNEBEEES AT RE
BRSAENRIBEHREE UER
HARARRBERAF -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont’d)

(b) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the remaining contractual

32. &R T A (&)

BEEBEEREREE (&)

(b)) REBELEE (&)

TRANAKETESRABNR

maturities at the end of the reporting period of LHRZ WA NHR - HIREA Y
the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, KRR\ ERE (BEEBEOFE
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash STEZAEMK kB FEEFIE - 8
flows (including interest payments computed using BIBRERARER CFETE) UK
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current AEEHERNRzEFHHARR -
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.
018 2017
= 2t e 3
Total More than  More than Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual Within -~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted ~ 1yearor  lessthan less than Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flows on demand 2 years 5 years amount (ashﬂows on demand 2 years 5 years
X —ER
1) 92 BB-F  H8Ff BERE
BEE BENE REXRE EORRE BIREF A BHREE
Trade payables, accrued expensesand % K ETERAR
other payables ApEAHA 55,150 55,150 55,150 - - 3440 34401 34421 - -
Borrowings 3 1050 1050 10,50 e 5 s s = = s
Convertble bonds ThRES 18800 118800 118800 g - S99 719090 193640 526350 =
18450 184450 184450 S - 64T T4t 28061 52630 =
(c) Equity price risk (c) RERE
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising RZE—NFERZT—tFHA=T
from equity investments classified as financial assets =] 'K%l J/,\E‘JE AR ATE

at fair value through profit or loss (see note 17) as at
30 June 2018 and 2017 respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2018, if equity prices at that date had
been 5% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, loss after taxation would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$1,000 (2016: profit after
taxation would decrease/increase by HK$3,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

(d) Credit risk

(e)

(7)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that services
are provided to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Bank deposits are limited to high credit rating
financial institutions. The Group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from account
receivables are set out in note 18.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as 94% (2016: 93%) of
the total account receivables of the Group were due
from 5 customers (2017: 5 customers). In addition,
the Group had a concentration of credit risk by
geographical area since its total trade debtors consists
of customers entirely in the PRC as at 30 June 2018
(2017: 100%) at the end of reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group does not have a significant foreign
currency risk exposure arising from its sales and
purchases transactions as these transactions are
mainly carried out in the entities’” own functional
currencies. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has
been prepared.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

e The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices
respectively.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

32. &R T A (&)

BHEEBEEREREEK (£)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

(f) BT RLAFHE(E)

(f) Fair value of financial instruments (Cont’d)

The fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is performed using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments for
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing
models for optional derivatives.

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

(g) Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to

3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

(g) Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Cont’d)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its

32.¢@ TR (&)

BREBEEEEREEK (&)

(9) REEHMBNRIXERZ L FEE
(#&)

AF{EREDFEEET 2 EED
E2HERYATEHERERT S
EAZBEBRBABBER -

entirety.
As at 30 June 2018
R-E-NEXA=1+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—B EE BB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at fair value BRATEIAEREZ
through profit or loss PREE 21 - - 21
Financial liabilities SRAE
Convertible bonds RKRESR - = 118,800 118,800
As at 30 June 2017
RZE—tFR A=Z+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ F_B F-E Bt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at fair value BATEGABRZ
through profit or loss PREE 53 - - 53
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Convertible bonds AR EH - = 569,900 569,900
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 32.&MIA (&
Financial risk management objectives and policies ERRESEEERBEK (£)
(Cont’d)
(g) Fair value measurements recognised in the (9) RZEHMBMRIEKRERZ L FENE
consolidated statement of financial position (&)
(Cont’d)
Fair value
as at Significant
30June  Fairvalue  Valuation technique unobservable Relationship of Unobservable
Financial liabilities 30 June 2018 2017 hierarchy  and key inputs inputs Range Inputs to fair value
REB-t#F
ZE-\f  AB=tAZ TEFTEE
SRER ~A=TA ATE  AVEER HEFERIEBARE DN ¢ 8E FUREBABBATENTE
30 June 2018 30 June 2017
ZB-N\F ZE-tE
~A=TA ~A=TA
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
A7 AT
Convertible bonds 118,800 569,990 Level 3 Discounted cash flow for the debt Expected 40.46% to 32.16% to The higher the expected volatility
component and binomial option volatility 45.09% 32.23% the higher the fair value
pricing model to estimate the fair
value of the option component
TARES 118,800 569,990 EZFE FERBOMEAGRRSER  RARE 40.46%Z 3216%% BERRUSATELR
ABREBAZEHATERE A 45.09% 32.23%
“EABREEES
Discount rate 22.12% to 21.64% to The higher the discount rate the
24.33% 24.27% lower the fair value
BRE 2.12%E 21.64%% FREUBATEAR
24.33% 24.27%
There is no transfer between different levels of the HE-_Z-NFRA=THLFE"
fair value hierarchy for the year ended 30 June 2018. TRARATFEER M EEKR-
There were no transfers between instruments in Level EF—EB FEREZE2IAEMBR
1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years ended 30 June BE_Z - N\HFRZ—tF<H
2018 and 2017. =THRILEFERLEER-
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont’d)

(g) Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(Cont’d)

Movement of financial liabilities measured at fair

value categorised in Level 3

32.¢@ TR (&)

BREBEEEEREEK (&)

(9) REEHMBNRIXERZ L FEE

(&)
?ﬁﬁxiﬁ AETSBEAEZEZE R

Convertible bonds

GE:Y 3¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year REH 569,990 -
Issuance during the year RERNETT - 680,331
Converted during the year A R R (10,800) (443,839)
Interest paid BT B (176) (672)
Total (profit)/loss recognised in  RiBzEHER 2~ Ci#A)
profit or loss EiEagE (440,214) 334,170
At the end of the year RER 118,800 569,990
Total (profit)/loss recognised in  ERFRFHAH Z
the profit or loss relating to BEMAEZNER
liabilities held at Ca M)/ EEeE
the end of the year (403,200) 242,315
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33. COMMITMENTS

(@) Operating leases commitment

The Group leases certain offices and premises under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
lease terms are between 1 to 2 years, the lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease
period. The Group signed the non-cancellable
operating lease agreements in respect of bus-body
and bus stands advertisement with an initial period of
8 and 5 years.

At 30 June 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

33. &L

(a)

REHERH

AEERBETAIRELEHEREH
EETHRAZRYME-HHANF122
F-HEMHAIREHRRER AKE
HELESFRETHEEERTNGEH
BRSFEMSFEZ TAI B EHE W

R
s
aEx °

RZZE-NFRA=1TH TEER
BAARELEHE -2 BN RRER
BHEERREBWT:

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

HK$000 HK$000

FET FET

Within 1 year —F R 22,729 20,880
After 1 year but within 5 years —F®&ERFR 755 9,594
23,484 30,474

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
entered into operating lease arrangements in respect
of offices and premises rental expenses amounting to
HK$896,000 (2017: HK$515,000) and bus-body and
bus stands advertisement rental expenses amounting
to HK$12,430,000 (2017: HK$20,378,000).

The Group has future minimum lease payable in
respect of offices and premises rental expenses
amounting to HK$502,000 (within 1 year) and
HK$600,000 (after 1 year but within 5 years) and in
respect of bus-body and bus stands advertisements
rental expenses amounting to HK$20,378,000 (within
1 year) and HK$8,994,000 (after 1 year but within 5
years).
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34. LITIGATION

(a)

On 31 August 2010, a writ of summons was issued
by Mr. Lim Yi Shenn as the plaintiff (“Plaintiff”)
against Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, an ex-director of the
Company, Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert, an ex-director
of the Company and the Company (collectively
“Defendants”).
each of the Defendants for damages for various

The Plaintiff claimed against

misrepresentations allegedly made by the Defendants
in relation to certain investment agreement and
placing agreement of April and June 2008. The
Plaintiff has filed a statement of claim setting out
the particulars of his claims against the Defendants
and claiming damages for misrepresentation in the
amount of approximately HK$15,838,000 and/or,
alternatively, the return of a sum of HK$10,000,000
by the Defendants based upon an alleged admission
of liability made by the Defendants. The Defendants
denied the Plaintiff’s claims and vigorously contested
such claims.

The Plaintiff's claims came before the Honourable
Deputy High Court Judge Wilson Chan for trial on
3 to 7, 10 to 13, 18 and 19 November 2014 and
Judgment was handed down by the Honourable
Deputy High Court Judge Wilson Chan on 29 January
2015 ("the Judgment”).
Honourable Deputy High Court Judge Wilson Chan

By the Judgment, the

dismissed all the Plaintiff's claims with costs to the
Defendants.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

34. LITIGATION (Cont’d)

(a)

(Cont’d)

The Plaintiff served a Notice of Appeal against the
Judgment on 4 March 2015, and his appeal was
heard on 12 July 2016 with Judgment reserved. On
7th September 2016 the Court of Appeal handed
down its Judgment dismissing the Plaintiff's Appeal
with costs.

The prescribed time for the Plaintiff to seek leave to
appeal to the Court of Final Appeal has expired and
the Plaintiff made no application for leave to appeal
to the Court of Final Appeal. The Defendants have
recovered all their costs incurred at the Court of First
Instance level and the Court of Appeal level from the
Plaintiff.

The Directors consider that the matters have been
concluded as the Plaintiff's claims have been finally
dismissed by the Court of Appeal and the Defendants
have recovered all costs incurred in the above action
and Appeal. On 25 January 2017 the Plaintiff lately
brought his claim for costs of certain interlocutory
applications in the above action in the aggregate
sum of HK$737,117.95 and commenced taxation
proceedings. The Defendants considered that the
claim for costs was grossly inflated and would seek
the taxing master’s determination on the quantum
of costs as claimed. The taxation hearing of the
Plaintiff’s claim for costs will be held on 13 December
2017.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

34. LITIGATION (Cont’d)

(b)

On 14 January 2011, a Writ of Summons was issued
by Smart Step Holdings Limited (“SSHL") as the
plaintiff against the Company, Inno-Gold Mining
Limited (“IGML") and Dragon Emperor International
Limited (“DEIL"). DEIL and IGML were the subsidiaries
of the Company until 9 May 2011 when the
Company disposed of all its interest in them.

In the said case SSHL alleged that Ms. Wong Yuen
Yee and Mr. Wong Yao Wing had acted negligently
and/or had breached their duties during their time as
executives and directors of the Company, DEIL and
IGML.

The substantive hearing of this case was adjourned
sine die pursuant to the court order dated 15 April
2011, and currently there is no hearing listed for this
case. This case remains dormant as at the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.

The directors, based on legal advice, consider that the
case does not have any adverse financial impact upon
the Company at all. Therefore, no provision in respect
of such claims was made in the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

34. LITIGATION (Cont’d)

(©)

On 30 January 2015, the Securities and Futures
Commission (“the Petitioner”) presented a Petition
to the High Court pursuant to section 214 of the
Securities and Future Ordinance, Cap. 517 (“the
Petition”) under action no. HCMP 241 of 2015
("HCMP 241/2015") against the Company and 4
ex-directors of the Company, namely, Wong Yuen
Yee, Wong Yao Wing, Robert, Wong Kwok Sing and
It is
the Petitioner’s complaints that the Ex-Directors had

Lam Shiu San (collectively “the Ex-Directors”).

conducted the business or affairs of the Company in a
manner involving misfeasance or misconduct towards
the Company, its members or any part of its members
and/or unfairly prejudicial to its members or any part
of its members.

By the Petition, the Petitioner sought an order
that the Company shall bring in its name civil
proceedings against the Ex-Directors to seek
recovery of compensation or damages for loss and
damage suffered by the Company as a result of such
misfeasance or misconduct or unfairly prejudicial
conduct and also disqualification of the Ex-Directors
to be director, liquidator, or receiver or manager
of any listed or unlisted company in Hong Kong or
from taking part in the management of any listed or
unlisted company in Hong Kong on such terms and
for such periods as the Court shall think fit and/or
other reliefs.

Pursuant to an Order of the High Court, the Company
commenced civil proceedings against the Ex-Directors
on 10 March 2015 under action no. HCA 489 of
2015 ("HCA 489/2015").
mediation conference on 22 February 2017 but no

The parties attended a

settlement was reached. There has been no progress
in this case since the mediation conference.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

34. LITIGATION (Cont’d)

(©)

(Cont’d)

Upon the Company bringing in its name civil
proceedings against the Ex-Directors to seek
recovery of compensation or damages for loss and
damage suffered by the Company as a result of their
misfeasance or misconduct or unfairly prejudicial
conduct in HCA 489/2015, such relief was deleted
by the Petitioner by filing an amended petition on 29
December 2016 in HCMP 241/2015.

There has been no development in HCMP 241/2015
after the Petitioner filed its list of documents on 26th
January 2017.

The Directors, based on legal advice, consider that the
case does not have any adverse financial impact upon
the Company at all. Therefore, no provision in respect
of such claims was made in the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as discussed above, during the year ended 30

June 2018, no member of the Group is engaged in any

litigation or arbitration or claim of material importance

and no litigation or claim of material importance is known

to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or against

any member of the Group.
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #EZ_=F—/FNA=1HIFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material related

party transactions:

(a) During the year, the Group did not have any
material related party transactions

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The emoluments of directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

35.

EXRBEALIRS

BRERa M mRBIEMKESEIN AE

BMAENTEABEALRS:

() FR FAEEYETIEMNEKRBE
ALERB

(b) TEEBAEZHME

FREEREMTIEEEASZHE
LI

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Basic salary, allowance and EXR% & R REMBEF
other benefits 720 720
Recognised retirement pension  BiER ZEKE 18 18
738 738

36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 36. ERFRERF

Save as transactions disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 26 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had no
other major non-cash transactions during the years ended
30 June 2018 and 2017.

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events after the reporting period.

38. DIVIDEND

The board of directors do not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017:Nil).
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For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

39. AR B B AR 3R

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W& BB k& 108 280
Interest in subsidiaries AN PR = =
Investment deposits KEE® S 15,000
108 15,280
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFIA ~ & N E M R GR IR
receivables 902 566
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE Ug B B8 xRl 5K 1A 3,616 22
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZFEYD 157 581
4,675 1,169
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and other payables JE&t & A N £ fth FE < 7B 7,151 3,120
Amount due to subsidiary FE A< Y B 2 R] IR 13,044 9,384
Borrowings EHE 10,000 =
Promissory notes HHER - -
Convertible bonds AR ES - 43,640
30,195 56,144
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (25,520) (54,975)
Total assets less current liabilities REERAEBERE (25,412) (39,695)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings fBE - _
Convertible bonds AR E S 118,800 526,350
Net liabilities EEFE (144,212) (566,045)
Equity s
Share capital (&N 10,529 9,979
Reserves (Note) e (Hat) (154,741) (576,024)
Equity attributable to KRBEBAEGER
the owners of the Company (144,212) (566,045)

The Company’s statement of financial position were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 September 2018 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Wang Yu
EFF
Director

EF
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Lau King Hang
21%iE
Director

EF

RRAZHBRRARER - \FNHA
“tNBEREESHERRETIE XA
TIHEERRRE:

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED E AR AR AR

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR m AR

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZ_—F—/\FNA=+HIFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

40.

COMPANY (Cont’d)

39.

KRB HBRREK (&)

Note: Biat -
Movement in reserves REEFHR
Share Capital
Share option Contributed redemption  Accumulated
premium reserves surplus reserve losses Total
R e EXER
R} % E i BABH e ZitEE @5t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiET FiET FET FET
At 1 July 2016 RZZE-x"EtA—-A 1,049,931 38,628 52,959 43 (1,331,193) (189,632)
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FEBBREAFELE
for the year - - - - (962,839) (962,839)
Placing of shares RERD 9,219 = = = = 9,219
Capital reorganisation BERER = = 93,639 = = 93,639
Issue of subscription shares RORBRH 36,750 - - - - 36,750
Issue of shares upon exercise of RTETRRESREIRN
convertible bonds 436,839 - - - - 436,839
At 30 June 2017 and 1July 2017 RZFE—+%,A=1H
k=Z-t&+A—-A 1,532,739 38,628 146,598 43 (2,294,032) (576,024)
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ BERZAFELSE - - = = 411,033 411,033
Issue of shares upon exercise of
convertible bonds RIEATRRERBEIRN 10,250 = = = = 10,250
Lapse of share option BB LK = (23,133) = = 23,133 =
At 30 June 2018 RZE-N\EXA=TH 1,542,989 15,495 146,598 43 (1,859,866) (154,741)
7 s o
AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF 40. RETIBEFRE U B |MK

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved

and authorised for issued by the Board of Directors on

28 September 2018.

INNO-TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED EAI#ZRER AR

REMBBRRER_Z-NAFALA-TN
AREFSHERRENE-
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